
 

 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

 
 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

 
 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

 
 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

  

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE COUNCIL 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Town of 
Guadalupe Council and to the general public that the Town of Guadalupe Council will hold 
a meeting, open to the public, on Thursday, July 12, 2018, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town 
Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Guadalupe, Arizona, in the Council Chambers.  

 
AGENDA 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

1. Approval of the minutes of the Town Council Regular Meeting held on June 14, 2018.   

E.   CALL TO THE PUBLIC. An opportunity is provided to the public to address the 
Council on items that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 
3 minutes will be provided for the Call to the Audience agenda item, unless the Council 
requests an exception to this limit. Please note that those wishing to comment on agenda 
items posted for action will be provided the opportunity at the time the item is heard. 
    
F.  MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATION:  None. 
 
G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 

1. BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF THE EAST VALLEY:  Boys & Girls Club 
representatives from the Guadalupe Branch will present the Club’s Annual Report. 

2. AVENIDA DEL YAQUI PROJECT PREVIEW:  Staff and consultant will provide 
a preview of the Avenida del Yaqui project which will include funding options, 
project elements and timeline, community impact, and the community input process. 

3. APPROVAL of an EXTENSION OF CABLE LICENSE AGREEMENT:  
Council will consider and may approve authorizing the Mayor to sign the Extension 
of Cable License Agreement with Cox Communications Arizona, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company, authorizing transacting business in the State of Arizona and 
the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona.    

4. APPROVAL of FIRST AMENDMENT:   Council will consider and may approve 
authorizing the Mayor to sign a First Amendment to the Amended and Restated 
Intergovernmental Agreement to Plan, Design, Construct, Operate, Maintain, and 
Finance the Regional Wireless Cooperative Network (RWC), effective January 1, 
2019.  The Regional Wireless Cooperative Network is a public safety radio network 
serving police, fire, first responders, and various governmental personnel.   

5. MERCADO PATIO PUBLIC EVENT APPLCIATION AND RENTAL 
AGREEMENT:  Council will review the proposed Mercado Patio Public Event  
Application and Rental Agreement for public special events, provide input, and may 

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

 
 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

 
 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

 
 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

approve the proposed agreement and direct staff to move forward with 
implementation on Monday, August 13, 2018.  (continued from the June 28, 2018 Town 
Council Regular Meeting) 

6. MERCADO PATIO PRIVATE EVENT APPLCIATION AND RENTAL 
AGREEMENT:  Council will review the proposed Mercado Patio Private Event 
Application and Rental Agreement for private events, provide input, and may approve 
the proposed agreement and direct staff to move forward with implementation on 
Monday, August 13, 2018.  (continued from the June 28, 2018 Town Council Regular 
Meeting) 

7. SPIRITUOUS LIQUOR ORDINANCE NO. O2018.01:  Council will review and 
may adopt the proposed spirituous liquor ordinance and direct staff to move forward 
with implementing the new ordinance. (continued from the June 28, 2018 Town Council 
Regular Meeting) 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
The Guadalupe Town Council may vote to go into an executive session closed to the 
public as allowed by ARS 38-431.03 (A) 3, 4, and 7 to obtain legal advice from the 
Town Attorney on the following topics:  
(a) Possible real property acquisition and the possible procedures therefore. 
(b) Conditional use permit procedures and requirements to grant and or deny 

conditional use permits. 
(c) Potential litigation / contract dispute. 

 
H.  TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
I.  COUNCILS’ COMMENTS 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 
 
July 6, 2018 

 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  July 12, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report  

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each of the meeting’s agenda items.   

Agenda Item:  

G1.   Boys & Girls Club of the East Valley:  Boys & Girls Club representatives from the Guadalupe 
Branch will present the Club’s Annual Report.    (Pages 6-20) 

 
G2.  Avenida del Yaqui Project Preview:  Through the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 

Regional Transportation programming, the Town of Guadalupe has been awarded $3.8 million of 
Federal Congestion Management and Air Quality funds to improve and renovate Avenida del Yaqui 
from the northern to southern borders.   

 
The purpose of this project is to improve the safety of motorists, pedestrians, and cyclists.  The project 
will consist of replacing the existing pavement, curbs and gutters, pavement markings, traffic control 
signage, and improving school crosswalks, adding bicycle lanes, and widening the sidewalks.  The 
project will be constructed in two phases:  northbound, then southbound.   Construction is planned to 
begin in January 2021.  However, planning, design, and engineering activities are under way.   

 
 It is anticipated that the majority of project will be built within existing Town rights-of-way, and may 

require utility relocations.   The local funding match required from the Town for this project is 
estimated at $286,000 as a minimum, and $1.3 million as a maximum.  The local funding match is 
dependent on the Town successfully receiving closeout funds through the MAG program.   

 
 Staff and a project consultant will present a preview of the project scope, project timeline, and funding 

options.  (Pages 21-32)  
 
G3: Extension of Cable License Agreement with Cox Communications Arizona:   Cox 

Communications Arizona seeks to extend the current license agreement with the Town through the 
extension under consideration.   This extension would continue the term of the current license until 
March 15, 2020.   The current license agreement was entered into on September 5, 2003 and is 
scheduled to expire on September 4, 2018.  All current terms and conditions would remain in effect.  
Annually, approximately $27,000 in revenues are received as a result of this agreement.  The current 
agreement and the extension are included in the packet.  (Pages 33-48)  

 
Importantly, new legislation, SB 1140, will be in effect on August 3, 2018. This legislation requires 
municipalities to issue “uniform video service licenses” to “video service providers” as of July 1, 
2019 and to allow incumbent cable operators to elect to apply for a uniform video service license 
that, when issued, would terminate their existing cable license.  Incumbent cable operators have from 
January 1, 2020 until June 30, 2020 to give notice to apply for the uniform video service license.  
This extension complies with the timing of the new law.  The League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
will be providing further guidance on this matter. 



2 
 

 
G4:   First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement to Plan, Design, 

Construct, Operate, Maintain, and Finance the Regional Wireless Cooperative Network 
(RWC): For Council consideration, staff is recommending approval of the First Amendment to the 
Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement to Plan, Design, Construct, Operate, Maintain, 
and Finance the Regional Wireless Cooperative Network (RWC), effective January 1, 2019.  Formed 
in 2008, the Regional Wireless Cooperative provides a multi-agency public safety radio system for 
the Phoenix metropolitan region.  Financial responsibilities are shared by all RWC members based 
on relative city/town size.    This First Amendment addresses the governance of the RWC by replacing 
the current Governance Document with a revised Governance Document. These revisions generally 
address RWC internal affairs, sharing of costs and expenses not specifically provided for in the 
agreement, and cost of insurance.  The First Amendment is included in the packet. RWC 
Governance Adoption Fact Sheet (Pages 49-51) and The First Amendment (Pages 52-83) 

 
G5.  Mercado Patio Public Event Application and Rental Agreement:  Staff will present the proposed 

Mercado Patio Public Event Application and Rental Agreement for public special events.  The revised 
application seeks comprehensive event information from the applicant; defines alcohol requirements; 
offers a varied fee schedule; requires a signed agreement that includes terms and conditions for the 
use of the Mercado Patio; and, requires a signed hold harmless agreement.   This information provides 
a greater understanding of the event and allows the Town to properly plan and provide sufficient 
resources.  Staff is seeking approval of this application along with the private event application and 
the spirituous liquor ordinance.  Should Council chose to approve, the applications will become 
effective on August 13, 2018.  (Pages 84-89)  

 
G6. Mercado Patio Private Event Application and Rental Agreement:  Staff will present the proposed 

Mercado Patio Private Event Application and Rental Agreement for private events.  Like the public 
application, the revised application seeks comprehensive event information from the applicant; 
defines alcohol requirements; offers a varied fee schedule; requires a signed agreement that includes 
terms and conditions for the use of the Mercado Patio; and, requires a signed hold harmless 
agreement.  This information provides a greater understanding of the event and allows the Town to 
properly plan and provide sufficient resources.  Staff is seeking approval of this application along 
with the public event application and the spirituous liquor ordinance.  Should Council chose to 
approve, the applications will become effective on August 13, 2018.  (Pages 90-95)  

 
G7. Spirituous Liquor Ordinance No. O2018.01:  Staff is proposing that the Town Council adopt a 

spirituous liquor ordinance that would allow private parties to serve beer during private events at the 
Mercado Patio in accordance with State law without requiring a special event liquor license that is 
issued by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.  This ordinance is specific to the 
Mercado Patio and is modeled after the City of Phoenix spirituous liquor ordinance.  Implementation 
of this ordinance is recommended to coincide with the implementation of the revised Mercado rental 
agreements.  Should Council adopt the ordinance, the ordinance will be effective 30 days after 
adoption.  If adopted, this ordinance would be incorporated into the Town Code codification.  (Pages 
96-98) 

 
G8.    Executive Session: At the Council’s discretion, Council may vote to adjourn into Executive Session 

to obtain legal advice regarding real property acquisitions, conditional use permit procedures and 
contract dispute.   

 



1 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

Minutes 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

June 14, 2018 

Minutes of the Guadalupe Town Council Regular Meeting held on Thursday, June 14, 2018, 
at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, Guadalupe, Arizona, 
in the Council Chambers.  

A. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Molina called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

B. ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Valerie Molina, Vice Mayor Anita Cota, Councilmember
Gloria Cota, Councilmember Elvira Osuna, Councilmember Faustino Valenzuela, and
Councilmember Ricardo Vital

Councilmember Absent: Councilmember Joe Sanchez 

Staff Present:  Jeff Kulaga – Town Manager / Clerk, Bob Thaxton – Finance Director, Jennifer 
Drury – Assistant to the Town Manager, Veronica Matuz – Senior Center Director, Dave 
Ledyard – Town Attorney, and Kay Savard – Deputy Town Clerk  

C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Councilmember Cota led the invocation.  Mayor Molina then led the Pledge of Allegiance.

D. APPROVAL  OF MINUTES:
1. Motion by Councilmember Vital to approve the May 10, 2018, Town Council Regular
Meeting minutes; second by Councilmember Cota.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0.

Approved the minutes of the Town Council Regular Meeting held on May 10, 2018.   

E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC – no one spoke.

F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS – None.

G. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS:

1. THE MINT DISPENSARY FINDINGS:  Councilmembers approved the Findings and
Decision granted for the extension and modification of the variance requests from G.T.L.,
LLC dba The Mint, a marijuana dispensary, 5210 S. Avenida Del Yaqui, Guadalupe, AZ are
related to the originally approved variance by the Town Council on June 29, 2017.  This
approved variance request extended the hours of operation for The Mint, a marijuana
dispensary, to remain open until 9:00 p.m.  On April 26, 2018, the Town Council granted
variance requests to continue the current hours of operation variance allowing the dispensary
to remain open from 8:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m., and to allow the facility to remain open from
9:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.  Approval of the Findings and Decision memorializes the April 26,
2018 variance requests approved by the Town Council.

In response to a question, David Ledyard, Town Attorney, clarified that the purpose of agenda 
item G1 is to have the Findings and Decision become part of the official record.  The Findings 

Page 1

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

2 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

 
 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

 
 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

 
 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

and Decision is related to a previous Council action (April 26, 2018), for The Mint 
Dispensary.   

Motion by Councilmember Vital to approve agenda item G1; second by Councilmember 
Cota.  Motion passed 5-1 with Vice Mayor Cota voting no. 

2. RESOLUTION NO. R2018.11:   Councilmembers adopted RESOLUTION NO. 
R2018.11 authorizing the Mayor to sign a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Guadalupe Community Development Corporation for the use of the Towns’ income from 
payments on loans for housing rehabilitation made with Maricopa County HOME Investment 
Partnerships. 
 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, noted that the Town does not currently have a housing 
program that would allow staff to utilize approximately $106,000 for housing purposes.  The 
Memorandum of Understanding will allow staff to transfer the funds to the Guadalupe 
Community Development Corporation (GCDC) who will then be able to administer the funds 
to provide housing options to community members. 
 
In response to questions, Cristina Campoy, Maricopa County HOME Investment Partnerships 
(County) representative, stated that the County is utilizing grant funding for the program, and 
has pending projects for the next 3-4 years.  Town staff provides the County contact 
information to community members. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Cota to approve agenda item G2; second by Councilmember 
Vital.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 

3. REVIEW DRAFT OF RESOLUTION NO. R2018.12:  Councilmembers agreed to 
designate the Conrado F. Biducia American Legion Post 124 and the Pascua Yaqui Tribe as 
Community Partners; and, directed staff to place the Resolution No. R2018.12 on the June 
28, 2018, Regular Council Meeting agenda. 

4. RESOLUTION NO. R2018.13:  Councilmembers continued Resolution No. R2018.13 
to the June 28, 2018 Regular Council Meeting.  Resolution No. R2018.13 authorizes the 
Mayor to execute an intergovernmental agreement for public safety services between the 
Town of Guadalupe and Maricopa County on behalf of the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office.  
The agreement effective date is from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021 (the “Initial Term”); 
and, and includes automatic renewal terms, unless terminated.  The contract amount is 
$1,775,048.40 for Fiscal Year 2019, July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, and shall be updated 
at rates not yet determined throughout the Initial Term (July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021) 
and each year thereafter, as outlined in Exhibit A of the Agreement. 

Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk, stated that the proposed agreement is similar to past 
agreements that the Town of Guadalupe has had with the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office 
(MCSO).  Mr. Kulaga outlined key provisions in the proposed agreement that differ from the 
existing agreement, as follows:  the contract amount has increased by approximately 
$150,000; the notice of termination for the agreement has changed from 12 month’s notice to 
six month’s notice, for either of the parties; law enforcement services are better defined; 
community policing procedures and citizen complaint procedures have been added; and 
deputy performance evaluations have been added.  The agreement will allow MCSO to 
provide law enforcement services to the Town of Guadalupe.  Mr. Kulaga stated that the 
changes in the agreement may be attributed to a change of leadership at MCSO and noted that 
the new Sheriff is Paul Penzone.     

In response to questions, Mr. Kulaga stated that a majority of cities and towns spend over 
50% of their budgets on public safety services, which includes police and fire activities.   

Councilmembers discussed community feedback concerning the desire for MCSO personnel 

Page 2

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

3 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

 
 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

 
 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

 
 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

to have a more visual presence in the Town; calls for service not being responded to in a 
timely manner; the reputation of MCSO is of concern; the number of vehicles responding to 
calls can be as many as eight; concern about the length of time it takes to place a call for 
service; cultural competency training has not yet occurred; and, ensuring that MCSO deputies 
treat community members respectfully.  Councilmembers emphasized that change is needed.  
It is important that the community feels that they are getting their money’s worth.   

In response to a question, Mr. Kulaga stated that the agreement would need to be signed by 
July 1.   

Councilmembers discussed the possibility of tabling this agenda item to allow for additional 
time to address Councilmembers’ concerns; and, how it would be helpful to have a 
representative from MCSO at an upcoming meeting to discuss the concerns raised.   
Councilmembers confirmed that the Town of Guadalupe has one beat. 

Ron Gomez, MCSO Community Liaison, Office of Special Programs, stated that he would 
relay the Councils’ request to the Sheriff’s office regarding having a MCSO representative 
attend an upcoming meeting. 

Mr. Kulaga advised Councilmembers to continue agenda item G4 to the June 28, 2018, 
Regular Council Meeting.   

David Ledyard, Town Attorney, stated that the agreement is with Maricopa County; and, the 
same agreement is what is offered to various other jurisdictions.  Mr. Ledyard suggested that 
MCSO offer a citizens academy to community members.   

Mr. Gomez stated that MCSO offers a Community Academy and could provide this training 
to community members. 

Mr. Kulaga reviewed the items scheduled for the June 28, Town Council Regular Meeting; 
and, confirmed that staff could place agenda item G4 on the June 28, 2018, Town Council 
Regular Meeting agenda. 

Councilmembers suggested that a representative from MCSO could provide a presentation at 
the June 28, 2018, Town Council Regular Meeting. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Cota to continue agenda item G4 to the June 28, 2018, Town 
Council Regular Meeting; second by Councilmember Vital.  Motion passed 
unanimously 6-0. 

5. CONTRACT – AREA AGENCY ON AGING:  Councilmembers approved and 
authorized the Town Manager to sign a contract renewal, authorizing the Area Agency on 
Aging to provide funding for congregate meals, home delivered meals, multipurpose center 
operations, and transportation services for Town of Guadalupe Senior Center services.  The 
contract amount is $140,032.  (Contract #2018-19) 

Motion by Councilmember Vital to approve agenda item G5; second by Vice Mayor 
Cota.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 

6. CLAIMS:  Councilmembers approved the check register for May, 2018, totaling 
$401,819.24. 

Motion by Vice Mayor Cota to approve agenda item G6; second by Councilmember 
Osuna.  Motion passed unanimously 6-0. 
 
H. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk provided the following updates: 

• Calle Naranjo Flood Control Project update:  the project is on schedule and on budget with 
no use of contingency funds; project completion is anticipated in mid-July. 

Page 3

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

4 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

 
 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

 
 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

 
 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

• Calle Sahuaro Guadalupe Flood Control Project update:  the project will begin in mid-
July; and, will require closure of Guadalupe Road for approximately 3 – 4 days.   

• Senior Center update:  congratulated Veronica Matuz –Senior Center Director, on having 
received a 97% rating from the Area Agency on Aging audit of the Guadalupe Senior Center. 

• Community Action Program: on schedule to exhaust all Maricopa County reimbursement 
funds for rental and utility assistance. 

• New pole has been installed in the Mercado to support the current lights strung across the 
Mercado.  

• July 1, 2018 – Independence Day family picnic event. 

• The air conditioner in the Town Hall lobby will be replaced in July, at a cost of 
approximately $8,000.  The Department of Economic Security office in the lobby will be 
relocated to the Museum Room, until the air conditioner unit has been replaced. 

• A new Town flag has been installed in the Council Chambers. 

• Encouraged Councilmembers to RSVP if they wish to attend the League of Arizona Cities 
and Towns Conference scheduled for August 23 – August 27, in Scottsdale, AZ. 

Mr. Kulaga invited Alexander Tovar and Reyna Cruz to the podium to provide an update 
regarding the Summer Youth Program. 

Mr. Tovar and Ms. Cruz stated that they are serving as the lead youth advisers for the Summer 
Youth Program.  This two week program is a part of the United Way organization.  The 
program will offer an interactive work experience for young people.  There is an application 
and interview process for program participants. 
 
I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 Councilmember Valenzuela 

Thanked staff members for attending the meeting. 
 
 Councilmember Vital 

Thanked Alexander Tovar and Reyna Cruz for their assistance with the Summer Youth 
Program. 
Saturday, June 16, 2018 at 9:00 am – Pico Rededication event. 
Wednesday, June 20, 2018 at 6:00 pm – Hope and Healing event. 

 
 Councilmember Osuna 
 Thanked staff members for attending the meeting. 
 Congratulations to Veronica Mutz, Senior Center Director, for the high audit score 
 received for the Senior Center. 
 Congratulated Youth Program leaders, Alexander Tovar and Reyna Cruz, for their work. 
 Pascua Yaqui Tribe movie nights begin on June 28, 2018. 
 
 Councilmember Cota 
 Thanked staff members for attending the meeting. 
  

Page 4

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

5 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
 

Anita Cota 
Vice Mayor 

 
 

Gloria Cota 
Councilmember 

 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
 

Joe Sanchez 
Councilmember 

 
 

Faustino Valenzuela 
Councilmember 

 
 

Ricardo Vital 
Councilmember 

 
 

Online agendas and 
results available at 

www.guadalupeaz.org 
 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 
Fax: (480)-505-5368 

 
 

 
 Vice Mayor Cota 
 Thanked staff members for attending the meeting. 
 Thanked Jennifer Drury, Assistant to the Town Manager, for coordinating the July 4, 
 2018, special event activities. 
 Thanked Summer Youth Program leaders for their work. 
 Thanked the Guadalupe Community Development Corporation for its support. 
 Excited about Senior Center activities. 
 Thanked the Veterans for the Memorial Day Walk. 
 
Mayor Molina 
 Congratulated Veronica Matuz on audit score for the Senior Center.  
 Congratulated Alexander Tovar and Reyna Cruz for their leadership on the Summer 
 Youth Program. 
 Monday, June 18, 2018 – Summer Youth Program Orientation, Mercado multi-purpose 
 room. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Vice Mayor Cota to adjourn; second by Councilmember Vital.  Motion 
passed unanimously 6-0. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:43 p.m.  

 
       _________________________________ 

 Valerie Molina, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: 
  
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 

 
CERTIFICATION 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the 
Regular Town Council Meeting of the Town Council of Guadalupe, Arizona held on the 14th 
day of June, 2018.  I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Town Clerk 

 

Page 5

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


Page 6



We are a community based, character building youth development organization.  We 
deliver the highest quality programs and provide opportunities to assist youth and teens 

in developing their self esteem, values and skills in a fun and safe environment.  Our 
professionals guide members through personal, educational and social development to 
realize their full potential and become positive, value-oriented and productive citizens.

Be the premiere provider of youth services reaching all youth 
and teens in the communities we serve.

Page 7



Page 8



In order for The Boys & Girls Club of the East Valley to accomplish its mission; we have learned that 
the level of impact the Club has on our people depends on how often and how long members 

participate, as well as how well the club implements the following Five Key Elements for Positive 
Youth Development

• Safe, Positive Environment: Club staff, programs and age-appropriate settings create stability, 
consistency and a sense of physical and emotional safety for members. The Club provides 
structure and clearly defines acceptable behaviors.

• Fun: The BGCEV generates fun for it's members. Members develop a strong sense of 
belonging through connections they establish with staff and peers. Staff members make the 
Club feel like home, fostering a family atmosphere and creating a sense of ownership for 
members.

• Supportive Relationships: Club youth develop meaningful relationships with adults and their 
peers. Staff members actively encourage such relationships. Staff members display warmth, 
caring, appreciation, acceptance and guidance in their interactions with members.

• Opportunities and Expectations: Club youth acquire physical, social, technological, artistic 
and life skills. Clubs encourage members to develop a moral character while reinforce high 
expectations and help members with school and post-secondary education.

• Recognition: Clubs recognize and support young people’s self-worth and accomplishments. 
Staff members encourage youth and provide positive reinforcement as they make 
improvements and experience successes. The Club showcases young people’s achievements.

Page 9



• Fun with a purpose
• The Club offers a variety of fun 

activities throughout the Club 
at all times including on-the-
spot fun, special games, Club 
events, holiday celebrations 

and more
• High-yield activities in each of 

the three priority impact areas 
are integrated into Club 

programming

Page 10



• Programs that are deliberately designed 
and selected to help members achieve 
our priority outcomes.

Page 11



• Annual Visits
• Average Daily Attendance
• Retention/Renewal

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



• Day For Kids
• Back to School Shopping
• Thanksgiving Dinner
• Partnership with VSUW
• Holiday Party
• Future For Kids
• Jamborees
• Girl Scouts

Page 15



• Torch & Keystone Clubs & 
Conferences

• Summer Food Program
• Youth of the Year
• Sports Leagues
• Dia Del Niño
• Holiday Parade 

Page 16



• During ASP we have an ADA of 240
• During SDC we have an ADA of 120
• We pick up from 4 schools and 6 

schools bus into us.
• Homework Help, Sports, Games, Arts 

& Crafts, Computers, STEM.
• Free dinner served to all members.
• Teen Centers open late – 8pm

– No Fees for teens! (Membership Only)

Page 17



• 43% of our members are Guadalupe Town Residents 
• Guadalupe Town Residents / Pascua Yaqui Tribal 

Members receive special pricing!
• Town/Tribal Membership $15/Year
• Town/Tribal SDC Fees $10/Day, $40/Week
• Town ASP Fees- $0 FREE

– Non Town/Tribal Members $30/Year
– Non Town/Tribal Members SDC $20/Day, 

$80/Week
– Non Town/Tribal Members ASP $40/ Month

**We offer scholarships for any family that has a 
hardship, we will not turn away kids due to 

affordability**

Page 18



COMING SOON

• After School Program
• Flag Football, Cheer, 

Basketball, FREE Soccer 
• KidzLit After School Literacy
•

Page 19



Page 20



Avenida Del Yaqui 

Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Improvement Project

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

July 12, 2018

Page 21



Project Details

• Convert Avenida del Yaqui into a safer venue for motorists, bicyclists, and 

pedestrians; including residents and school children. 

• Mill and overlay of the existing asphalt pavement; new pavement markings; 

and removal and reconstruction of the existing concrete curb, gutter, and 

sidewalk.

• Bicycle facilities will be added, all traffic control signs will be removed and 

replaced, enhanced pedestrian crossings and amenities will be installed. 

• Utility relocation, lighting, and safety-related improvements are anticipated. 

• Existing transit shelters will remain. 

Page 22



Project Limits
• The intersection of the Highline Canal at the 

north to the intersection of Calle Carmen at 

the south

• Construction will be phased to allow the road 

to remain open to local traffic. 

• Once one side of the road is complete, traffic 

will be shifted onto the new lanes and the 

other side of the road will be constructed. 

Traffic Impact

Page 23



Schedule
Page 24



Funding

• Current Construction Budget is Approx. $4 Million

• 94.3% Federal dollars. 

• 5.7% Local Match by the Town of Guadalupe

• Est. Min $250,000 || Est. Max $1,300,000 due by FY 2021

• Additional project costs: design, utility relocation and right of 
way acquisition, cost estimates TBD

• To receive support for these costs, Guadalupe must compete Oct/Nov 
‘18, ‘19, and ‘20 for close-out funding.

• Up to 94.3% Federal dollars possible

• Minimum 5.7% Local Match by the Town of Guadalupe

Page 25



Planning
• Two planning studies funded and conducted by MAG will be 

incorporated into this project.

• Road Safety Assessment (RSA) identified countermeasures to 
enhance safety of all road users 

• Safe Routes to School (SRTS) study for Frank Elementary identified 
circulation and mobility improvements

Page 26



Preliminary

Alternative

Cross 

Sections

EXISTING 65’ ROW

EXISTING 80’ ROW

ALTERNATIVE FOR 80’ ROW

ALTERNATIVE A FOR 65’ ROW ALTERNATIVE B FOR 65’ ROW

Page 27



Pros

Cons

Trade-Offs
• Traffic calming

- Reduce speeds and improves 
pedestrian safety

- Emergency response equipment 
costs  and deteriorations

• Associated cost

- An opportunity to receive up to 
94.3% funding for a key roadway 
improvement project

- Requires an initial investment by 
the Town of Guadalupe

• Construction impact

• Impact to current parking 
practices

• Right-of-Way acquisition

• Designated bike lane

• Improved safety of school 
crossings

• Complete repave and rehab of 
Avenida del Yaqui

• New sidewalk and curb and gutter

• Improvements to signage and 
striping

• Additional shade trees

• Shaded bus stops

Page 28



Next Steps

• Public open house August 15th

• Present the community with the project and get input

• Receive feedback on community preference

• What is the most important design component to you? 

• Of each design component, what is your favorite?

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Regional Wireless Cooperative
(RWC)

Adoption of New Governance Document
June 2018

Background
The RWC is a large public safety radio network serving the frontline needs of police, fire, first
responders, and other governmental support personnel. The network operates in the 700 MHz
frequency band and consists of over 80 strategically placed communication sites, providing
seamless, wide area radio coverage across 11,000 square miles of the Phoenix metropolitan
region.

Some of the benefits of this multi-agency radio system include wide area coverage beyond what
individual agencies could achieve; seamless interoperability (the ability for diverse public safety
agencies to communicate directly, in real-time, as the need requires); shared resources, such
as staffing, equipment and tower sites. All funding and financial responsibilities are shared by all
RWC Members based on the Member’s relative size.

Formed in 2008, the RWC is a cooperative body formed under an Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA) with membership open to all local, county, state, and federal governmental and tribal
entities. The RWC includes most of the cities, towns, and fire districts located within the Phoenix
metropolitan region. The RWC Board of Directors consists of one executive representative from
each Member. The nineteen Member Board directs the operation, maintenance, planning,
design, implementation, and financing of the RWC. The City of Phoenix serves as the
“Administrative Managing Member” responsible for the administration and financial 

management of the RWC.

Governance
The RWC’s Governance Document (Governance) is identified as “Exhibit A” to the RWC IGA
which was adopted and signed by all nineteen Member’s governing bodies. The Governance

provides written direction and guidance -- setting forth term definitions, management processes;
and financial, accounting and network management of the RWC. The Governance is the
administrative and managerial “rule book” used by the Board of Directors, Executive Director,
and operational and technical support personnel for managing the RWC.

Updated Governance Document

In 2012, the RWC Board of Directors established a “Governance Working Group” (GWG) tasked 

with undertaking a full, detailed review of the Governance to ensure it was effectively meeting
the needs for managing the RWC.

The GWG conducted over 80 meetings which included discussions and input with the RWC
Board of Directors, fire and police chiefs, public safety committees, accounting staff, City of
Phoenix Finance and Budget Departments, labor organizations, public safety and radio
communications, technical and information technology subject matter experts. Also, as draft
Governance documents were developed, legal staffs from every RWC Member were consulted
and solicited for review and input.

Page 49



Action and Next Steps 
On Thursday, May 24, 2018, the RWC Board of Directors voted to approve the attached 
“Regional Wireless Cooperative Governance Document”. The Board of Directors also directed 
each RWC Member to amend the RWC IGA via each Member’s appropriate governing body. 
The amendment to the RWC IGA is required to replace the current Governance Document with 
the newly revised Governance Document. 
 
Overview of Changes 
As mentioned above, the GWG engaged in a very detailed and deliberate process of analysis, 
discussions, rewrites, and legal review. The result of the process is a much improved 
Governance Document. This process resulted in a significant structural reorganization of the 
Governance Document with modified language that clarified many sections. Since the review 
focused primarily on structure and clarity, few substantive changes were necessary. 
 
A “redline” version, depicting every change to the Governance Document, would not be practical 
for review purposes. However, the following highlights are provided to focus on the most 
significant modifications: 
 
New Recitals 

 Emphasis and clarity of RWC purpose and vision 
 
Definitions: 

 Encryption Services Manager 
 Encryption Services Operator 
 General Government Services Entities 
 Network Administrator 
 Network Manager 
 RWC Net Position 
 Super Majority 
 User Working Group 
 Working Day 

Member Categories: 
 Associates 
 Interoperability Participants 
 Conditional Participants 
 Network Partners 

 
Board of Directors: 

 Chair & Vice-chair clarification 
 Representative vs Delegate clarification 
 Voting Methodology 
 Super-Majority Voting 

 
Administrative Management: 

 Administrative Manager 

Page 50



 Network Manager 
 Encryption Services Manager 
 Encryption Services Operator 
 Executive Director 

 
Advisory Committees: 

 Executive Committee 
 User Working Group 
 Technical Working Group 

 

Financial Management: 
 Budget and Financial Planning and Reporting 
 Simplify Fund Definitions 

o Operating 
o Capital 
o Reserves 

 RWC Capital Equity 
 Annual Audit Process 

 

RWC Assets and Ownership: 
 Clarification of Real vs Personal Property 

 Clarification of Administrative Managing Member Responsibilities 
 

Insurance: 
 Clarification of Roles - Member versus Administrative Managing Member 

 

 
Questions should be directed to: 

 
David Felix, Executive Director 
Regional Wireless Cooperative 

(602) 495-2426 

Page 51



124822-002 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT TO PLAN, DESIGN, CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, MAINTAIN AND FINANCE 

THE REGIONAL WIRELESS COOPERATIVE NETWORK 

This First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement to Plan, 

Design, Construct, Operate, Maintain and Finance the Regional Wireless Cooperative Network (the “First 

Amendment”) is made and entered into effective January 1, 2019, by and between the signatories hereto.  

Unless indicated otherwise herein, all capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to 

them in the Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the rules and policies governing the regulation and

management of the RWC’s internal affairs, which rules are presently set forth in Exhibit A to the 

Agreement, by replacing said Exhibit A with the document attached as Exhibit A hereto; and 

B. WHEREAS the Parties deem it appropriate to make several additional revisions to the body

of the Agreement in order to accommodate the revision of Exhibit A; 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. REPLACEMENT OF GOVERNANCE DOCUMENT: Exhibit A to the Agreement is

hereby deleted and replaced with the Regional Wireless Cooperative Governance Document attached 

as Exhibit A hereto. 

2. ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO THE AGREEMENT:

a. The first sentence within the second paragraph of Section 4.4 of the Agreement is

hereby deleted and replaced with the following: “The Parties agree that all damages,

costs and expenses not specifically provided for in this Agreement shall be shared by

the Parties in proportion to each Party’s share of the total number of Subscriber Units at

the time the claim or lawsuit is first served on any Party or the unforeseen costs or

expenses were incurred (whichever occurs first).”

b. The fourth sentence within Section 4.8 of the Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced

with the following: “The cost of any insurance and/or self-insurance provided under

this section shall be shared by the Parties pursuant to Section 3.3.2 of Exhibit A.”

3. SURVIVAL OF AGREEMENT: The Agreement shall remain in force and effect pursuant

to its terms, except as modified by this First Amendment. 

[signature pages follow] 

Page 52



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this First Amendment effective as of the 

date set forth above. 

 

 

For: __________________________________ 

 

Date: __________________________________ 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

 

Name of Signor: _________________________ 

 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM and within the  

powers and authority granted under the  

laws of the State of Arizona: 

 

 

 

 

       

City/Town Attorney   

  

 

Page 53



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

(see following page)

Page 54



 

 

 

 

REGIONAL WIRELESS COOPERATIVE GOVERNANCE DOCUMENT 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



Table of Contents 

1. Definitions 

2. RWC Structure 

3. Financial Management 

4. RWC Assets, Maintenance, and Ownership 

5. Insurance 

6. Operational Control and Duties (Programming and Capabilities) 

7. Services 

8. Maintenance 

9. General Provisions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56



RECITALS 

  

A. This Agreement establishes (1) an organizational and management structure for ongoing Network 

administration, planning, operation, and maintenance; and (2) a budgeting and accounting process to allocate costs 

among Members, Conditional Participants, Interoperability Participants, and Associates for the Network’s operation 

and maintenance. 

B. The Members further desire to provide a process for admitting other Public Safety Agencies and 

General Government Service Entities to join and participate in the RWC pursuant to terms and conditions of this 

Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

1.  DEFINITIONS 

The following terms when used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them below.  Words and terms used in the 

singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular, as the context may require.   

              Term                                         Definition 

 

Administrative Manager 

 

 

 
 
Agreement 

The Member selected by the Board pursuant to Subsection 2.2 of this 

Agreement that is responsible for the RWC administration, day-to-day 

operations and financial management whose powers and duties are 

more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.3.1 of this Agreement. 
 

This governance document. 

 

Alternate Representative One or more persons who have been designated by a Member to serve 

as their substitute representative and as having the authority to act on 

the Member’s behalf for RWC matters as more specifically set forth in 

Subsection 2.2.1 of this Agreement. 

 

Applicable Law 

 

 

Associate 

Applicable federal, state, and local law and regulation (including but not 

limited to, for a Member, that Member’s Charter and City Code). 

 

A non-Member entity that is authorized by the Board to use the Network 

to support an existing Member pursuant to Subsection 2.1.1 of this 

Agreement.  

 

Page 57



Board of Directors 

(“Board”) 

 

Capital Project Fund(s)  

 

 

 

Claims 

The governing body of the RWC whose duties are more specifically set 

forth in Subsection 2.2. 

 

One or more funds established for infrastructure replacements and 

enhancements pursuant to and as more specifically set forth in 

Subsection 3.3.2.3. 

 

Claims and lawsuits, including claims, demands, losses, liability, damages, 

payments, judgments, costs, expenses (including but not limited to 

reasonable attorney’s fees incurred through all appeals).  

 

Conditional Participants 

 

 

 

 

Encryption Services 

Manager 

 

 

Encryption Services 

Operator 

A non-Member entity authorized by the Board or the Executive Director 

to use the Network for special events, tactical situations, emergency 

circumstances, or for other purposes subject to the terms and conditions 

more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.1.3. 

 

As authorized by the Board, an entity responsible for the management of 

encryption keys and process whose powers and duties are more 

specifically set forth in Subsection 2.3.4 of this Agreement. 

 

As authorized by the Board, an entity responsible for executing the 

activities of the encryption management services over a specific area as 

more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.3.5. 

 

Executive Committee The RWC committee responsible for producing and/or evaluating RWC 

proposals and recommendations as necessary, prior to submission to the 

Board and the other responsibilities as more specifically set forth in 

Subsection 2.2.13.   

  

Executive Director 

 

 

 

Final Budget 

The chief executive officer responsible for oversight of RWC and Network 

activities at the direction of the Board as more specifically set forth in 

Subsection 2.3.6.1. 

 

The Final Budget adopted by the Board for each fiscal year as more 

specifically set forth in Subsection 3.2. 

 

Fiscal Year 

 

The twelve (12) month accounting period for budgeting and expenditure 

reporting that commences on the first day of July and ends on the 

thirtieth day of June, unless otherwise agreed to by the Board. 

 

Page 58



General Government 

Service Entities 

 

General Government 

Personnel 

All public sector entities or departments whose primary responsibility is 

providing residents with services other than Public Safety services. 

 

All employees, contractors or other individuals that provide work for 

General Government Service Entities. 

 

Good Standing The status of a Member who is in full compliance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

 

IGA 

 

 

 

 

Impact Assessment 

That certain Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement to 

Plan, Design, Construct, Operate, Maintain, and Finance the Regional 

Wireless Cooperative Network (City of Phoenix Contract No. 124822-

001), including all amendments thereto 

 

Evaluation of impacts to the Network and RWC Members resulting from 

additional or expanded use of the Network.   

 

Interoperability The ability of emergency responders to communicate among 

jurisdictions, disciplines, and levels of government, as needed and as 

authorized.  

 

Interoperability 

Participant 

A non-Member entity authorized by the Board to use the Network for 

the purpose of participating in intermittent interoperable situations or 

circumstances as more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.1.2. 

 

Member 

 

 

Any entity that executes and becomes a Party to this Agreement to plan, 

design, construct, operate, maintain, and finance the RWC Network as 

more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.1.   

 

Member’s Equity 

 

The Member’s proportionate share of RWC Capital Equity as more 

specifically set forth in Subsection 3.4. 

 

Member Personal 

Property 

 

A Member Personal Property including, without limitation, all frequency 

licenses, equipment, hardware, and software that the Member owns. 

Member Real Property 

 

A Member’s real property, and fixtures thereto, including without 

limitation real estate, buildings, structures, towers, generators, HVAC, 

fire detection, and suppression systems that the Member owns. 

Member Retained 

Property 

 

The Member’s Real Property and Member Personal Property that will 

continue to be owned by individual Members and not be included as 

part of the Member’s Equity.  

 

Page 59



Network 

 

 

 

 

 

Network Administrator 

 

 

 

Network Manager 

 

 

 

The Public Safety and general government communications system that 

is planned, designed, constructed, operated, maintained, and financed 

by the RWC and its Members, including all real estate, real property, and 

personal property that is purchased, leased or licensed by the RWC or 

owned or licensed by a Member and which such Member allows the 

RWC to use. 

 

As authorized by the Board, the entity that is responsible for the 

technical operations of the Network and whose powers and duties are 

more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.3.2 of this Agreement. 

 

As authorized by the Board, an entity responsible for providing 

operations and maintenance for a defined portion of the Network whose 

powers and duties are more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.3.3 of 

this Agreement. 

 

Network Partner 

 

 

 

Network Resource Plan 

 

 

 

 

Network Resource 

Priorities 

 

Other governmental or other regional communication systems that have 

entered into a written agreement with the RWC but are not parties to 

this Agreement.   

 

A plan document that describes available network resources users can 

access to carry out their communications. This plan will be used to 

allocate and manage resources on the network, and in the development 

of radio programming templates. 

 

The priorities assigned to Network resources pursuant to  

Section 7.4.4.1, (see Network Resource Plan) such as talkgroups or 

physical radio frequency channels to ensure the most urgent 

communications receive the highest priority in the network. 

 

Network Services 

 

 

Services provided by the RWC related to Talkgroups, feature sets, 

encryption usage, priorities, roaming, and any other services.  

 

Network System 

 

 

The collection of devices, software, hardware, technologies, facilities, 

towers or other devices or structures that provide RWC voice and data 

communications capability for the Network.  

 

New Member Special 

Assessment 

 

 

The special assessment a new RWC Member may be required to pay 

upon joining the RWC pursuant to Subsection 3.3.5.1. 

 

 

Page 60



Operating Fund 

Contingency Balance   

 

Parties 

 

Party 

 

A reserve of money set aside to cover unforeseen future expenses as set 

forth in Subsection 3.3.2.2. 

 

Collective reference to all entities that are signatories to this Agreement. 

 

Any individual entity that is a signatory to this Agreement. 

 

Public Safety  

 

 

Public Safety Agencies  

 

Public Safety refers to the welfare and protection of the general public 

typically performed by Public Safety Agencies. 

 

All local, county, state, tribal community, and federal law enforcement 

agencies, fire and medical services, emergency management and 

disaster preparedness agencies whose purpose and function at least in 

part is to enhance or maintain Public Safety. 

 

Regional Wireless 

Cooperative (“RWC”) 

The cooperative that was formed by the Parties to jointly plan, design, 

construct, operate, maintain, and finance the Network; the operations of 

which cooperative are governed by the IGA and this Agreement. 

 

Representative  

 

 

 

RWC Assets 

 

 

RWC Capital Equity 

The person designated by a Member to act on behalf of the Member on 

all matters concerning the RWC as more specifically set forth in 

Subsection 2.2.1 of this Agreement. 

 

The real and personal property that the RWC owns, leases or licenses; 

except for Member Retained Property.  

 

(1)  The amount paid for RWC capital additions, upgrades or 

replacements including real estate, real property, and other property 

purchased by the RWC; and  

 

(2)  Capital contributed by Members to the RWC.  It does not include 

Member Retained Property or fees paid by Members that are a 

Member’s share of operation and maintenance costs. 

 

RWC Net Position 

 

 

RWC Policies and 

Procedures 

 

Special Assessment 

 

 

 

Subscriber Unit 

The total RWC Assets, minus RWC liabilities as reported in the RWC 

financial statements. 

 

The policies and procedures that have been adopted by the Board. 

 

 

Fee assessed by the Board to pay the cost of projects, or unforeseen 

expenses as more specifically set forth in Subsection 3.3.3.  Each Special 

Assessment may use a unique cost distribution method. 

 

Any device authorized for use on the Network. 

 

Page 61



Super-Majority A vote of no less than eighty percent (80%) of the Board Members 

present as more specifically set forth in Subsection 2.2.11 

 

Talkgroup 

 

 

Technical Working Group 

 

 

A defined organizational grouping of radio users who need to 

communicate with one another. 

 

A working group consisting of Member technical and operational 

practitioners who meet to address Network Services, operation and 

maintenance issues, performance issues, Impact Assessments, and other 

Network technical matters as established by the Board pursuant to 

Subsection 2.2.12. 

 

User Working Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Working Day 

As established by the Board pursuant to Subsection 2.2.12, a group (such 

as fire fighters, police officers or General Government Personnel) that 

meets to: (1) discuss or provide operational or field input regarding RWC 

Network use and performance; (2) share knowledge and experience; (3) 

receive input from RWC department delegates, industry providers or 

RWC management (or RWC management designee); and (4) conduct 

other related activities.  

 

A calendar day other than Saturday, Sunday or a United States federal 

holiday. 

 

 

2. RWC STRUCTURE 

2.1. Members 

The RWC shall be comprised of its Members.   Each Member shall have one voting Representative on the Board.   

2.1.1. Associates 

An entity may become an Associate if the entity: (1) is under contract to or supports an existing Member that uses the 

Network to provide Public Safety or general government services and is authorized by the Board to use the Network; 

and (2) is compliant with the conditions as set forth by the Board, this Agreement, and any other applicable 

agreements.  Associates have no RWC voting rights or representation on the Board or the Executive Committee, but 

may have a delegate on other RWC committees as authorized by the Board.  The Administrative Manager may assess 

fees and costs, including “in kind” non-monetary compensation, to an Associate in an amount determined by the 

Board. 

2.1.2. Interoperability Participants 

 An Interoperability Participant may use the Network for intermittent interoperable situations, if authorized by the 

Board, and subject to: (1) the conditions imposed by the Board; (2) this Agreement; and (3) any other applicable 

agreements.  Interoperability Participants shall have no RWC voting rights or representation on the Board or any RWC 

committees.  The Administrative Manager, subject to the Board’s approval, may assess fees and costs (including “in 

kind” compensation) against an Interoperability Participant in an amount determined by the Board.   

Page 62



2.1.3. Conditional Participants 

As a Conditional Participant, a non-Member entity may use the Network for (1) special events; (2) tactical situations; 

(3) emergency circumstances; or (4) any other circumstances as authorized by the Board.  Conditional Participants 

have no RWC voting rights or Representative to the Board, or any RWC committees. The Conditional Participant’s use 

of the Network is subject to any conditions imposed by the Executive Director or the RWC Board, and such conditions 

may include, without limitation, assessment of fees and costs (including “in kind” non-monetary compensation) in an 

amount determined by the Board. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Subsection 2.1.3, the Executive 

Director may authorize the addition of a Conditional Participant without first obtaining Board approval, but 

continuation of the Conditional Participant’s Network use and any conditions imposed by the Executive Director must 

be approved or disapproved by the Board at their next meeting.  The Conditional Participant’s right to use the Network 

may be terminated by the Board at any time. 

2.1.4. Network Partner  

Subject to Board approval, the RWC may enter into individualized agreements with Network Partners to share 

infrastructure, expand coverage, manage costs, or for other purposes which advance the interests of Public Safety.  

2.1.5. Member Admission and Approval 

Any entity in the Network service and expansion area, as defined by the Board, may apply for RWC membership. The 

Board, at its sole and absolute discretion, may admit an applicant as a Member upon completion of all the following 

and by majority vote of the Members: 

 The Applicant’s written request for RWC Membership. 

 The Applicant’s executing an agreement with the RWC that specifies the fees and costs the applicant must pay 

the RWC pursuant to Subsection 2.1.5.1 of this Agreement.  

 The Applicant meeting all conditions imposed by the Board and this Agreement. 

 The Applicant executing and becoming a Party to this Agreement.  

2.1.5.1.  Evaluation Factors  

The Board has the sole and absolute discretion to either summarily deny or consider applicants for Membership status.  

If the Board elects to consider an application, an Impact Assessment must be completed. The applicant will be 

responsible for any costs associated with the Impact Assessment unless the Board directs otherwise, whether or not 

the applicant becomes a Member.  

After completion of the Impact Assessment, the Executive Director will forward the assessment to the Board for 

approval with a written recommendation that includes financial and Network operational impact statements.  

The RWC will evaluate requests for new Membership using the Impact Assessment factors as referenced in the Board 

approved policies and procedures.   

2.2. Board of Directors 

The Board governs the RWC subject to this Agreement and the IGA. The Board establishes RWC policy, develops and 

maintains a long-range capital budget, develops and adopts an annual budget, establishes funding, assesses fees, 

Page 63



approves Membership, and exercises any other authorized powers and duties.  The Board may exercise such other 

powers and duties as authorized under this Agreement.  The Board must act only in accordance with this Agreement 

and all applicable laws.   

The Administrative Manager will be as defined in a RWC Board resolution in conjunction with this Agreement. The 

Board must select an Administrative Manager, which will have powers and duties as listed under 2.3.1.  Except as 

otherwise determined by the Board, the Administrative Manager will serve a four-year term unless the Administrative 

Manager resigns or is removed by the Board pursuant to a Super-Majority Board vote prior to expiration of such term.   

Upon resignation, removal or no later than six months prior to expiration of the Administrative Manager’s term, an ad 

hoc group of three to five   Board members appointed by the Board Chair will review and recommend one or more 

Administrative Manager candidates for consideration by the Board.  Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the 

Administrative Manager must give at least twelve months’ prior written notice to the RWC Board before resigning as 

Administrative Manager.  The Administrative Manager may serve any number of successive terms and must be elected 

by a Super-Majority vote.  Except as limited by this Agreement, the Board may delegate additional powers and duties 

to the Administrative Manager as necessary to assure cost effective and efficient delivery of services.   

The initial Network Administrator will be as defined in a Board resolution in conjunction with this Agreement. The 

Board must select a Network Administrator, which shall have powers and duties as listed under 2.3.2. The same entity 

may serve as Administrative Manager and Network Administrator.  Except as otherwise determined by the Board, the 

Network Administrator will serve a four-year term unless the Network Administrator resigns or is removed by the 

Board pursuant to a Super-Majority vote prior to expiration of such term.  Upon resignation, termination or no later 

than six months prior to expiration of the Network Administrator’s Term, an ad-hoc group of three to five Board 

members appointed by the Board Chair must review and recommend one or more Network Administrator candidates 

for consideration by the Board.  Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the Network Administrator will give at 

least twelve months’ prior written notice to the RWC Board before resigning as Network Administrator. The Network 

Administrator may serve any number of successive terms and must be elected by a Super-Majority vote.  

2.2.1. Representatives 

The Board will consist of Representatives of the Members (or their respective Alternate Representative(s), as set forth 

below). There will be one (1) Representative for each Member. The Board Representatives must be police chiefs, fire 

chiefs, chief information officers (CIO), chief financial officers (CFO), city managers, county managers, town managers, 

State of Arizona department directors, regional agency directors, or other positions with executive level decision-

making authority.  A Member must be in Good Standing before that Member’s Representative may exercise a vote on 

any matter at a Board Meeting. 

The following procedures and rules govern the appointment and service of a Member’s Representative: 

 A Member is entitled to appoint one person that meets the above criteria to serve as that Member’s 

Representative. 

 A Member may also appoint one or more persons that meet the above criteria to serve as an Alternate 

Representative.   

 At least two business days before the first Board meeting following joining the RWC, each Member must have 

notified the Executive Director in writing of the person or persons who are authorized to serve as the 

Member’s Representative or Alternate Representatives. Notwithstanding Section 9.9.1of this Agreement, such 

notification may be made via email. 

Page 64



 The appointment of a Member’s Representative or Alternate Representative becomes effective when the 

Executive Director receives the written notice and will continue thereafter until the Executive Director receives 

any contrary written instruction regarding the Member's Representative or Alternate Representatives.   

 The Member must rank the Alternate Representatives in the order that they shall serve when the 

Representative is absent.   

 If the Member’s Representative is not present at a meeting, then the Member’s Alternate Representative will 

act in place of and exercise all powers of the Representative.   

 Each Member shall be bound by the acts of its Representative, and the RWC is authorized to rely on the act of 

a Representative the same as if such act were done by the governing body of the Member.   

 The Representative or Alternate Representative must be vested with the authority to lawfully act on the 

Member’s behalf with respect to the RWC.   

 The Executive Director must maintain a list of the names and addresses of all Board Member Representatives 

and Alternate Representatives.   

 

2.2.1.1. Removal or Replacement 

A Member may replace or remove its Representative or Alternate Representative at any time by giving written notice 

to the Executive Director.  The removal or replacement of a Representative or Alternate Representative is effective 

when the Executive Director receives the written notice of such removal or replacement. 

2.2.2. Chair and Vice Chair 

The Board must elect one of its Members as Chair.  The Chair will be the presiding officer of the Board, must serve a 

two-year term, and remains a full voting Representative.  The Chair cannot serve more than two consecutive terms.  

The Board must elect one of its Representatives as Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair must execute the duties of the Chair 

during the absence or disability of the Chair. 

During the absence or disability of the Chair and Vice-Chair, the Board must elect a temporary presiding officer from 

the attending Board Members. 

2.2.3. Meetings 

The Board will meet quarterly except to the extent that the Board determines to meet more or less frequently. 

2.2.4. Special Meetings 

A Representative with approval of the Chair may call a special meeting of the Board upon a minimum of five (5) 

Working Days’ notice to the Board.  In the event of an emergency, a meeting may be scheduled and noticed with less 

than five (5) Working days’ notice provided notice is given to the public and Representatives in compliance with 

Arizona Open Meetings Law.  

2.2.5. Notice and Agenda 

The Executive Director will prepare the notice, agenda and minutes of Board meetings.  Notwithstanding anything to 

the contrary in this Agreement, a Member’s representative may add an item to be considered by the Board to the 

agenda by providing written notice to the Chair and the Executive Director one-hundred twenty (120) hours before the 

meeting. In emergency situations items may be added no later than twenty-four (24) hours before the applicable 

Page 65



meeting, so as to ensure compliance with the Arizona Open Meetings law.  The Executive Director must provide a 

Board meeting notice and agenda to each Member with at least as much notice as is required to the public under 

Arizona law. For any agenda item requiring Super-Majority approval, the Executive Director must specifically reference 

that such agenda item requires Super-Majority approval. 

2.2.6. Quorum 

A quorum is required to conduct Board business.  To constitute a quorum, a majority of the total number of the 

Members’ Representatives must be present. 

2.2.7. Attendance 

Unless the Board Chair otherwise directs upon prior notice, a Member Representative or Alternate Representative may 

attend and participate in a meeting in person, by teleconference or video-conference, if the possibility of such method 

of attendance is noted in the meeting notice.    

2.2.8. Rules 

The Board must establish rules for its proceedings.  An item not specifically covered by the rules established by the 

Board or by law shall be decided by the meeting’s presiding officer using the latest standard edition of Robert’s Rules 

of Order. 

2.2.9. Voting Methodology 

Except as otherwise provided in this Subsection, each Member attending a meeting of the Board must vote on all 

matters to be decided by the Board at that meeting, unless the Representative has a good-faith reason to abstain from 

voting and has explained their reasoning to the Board.  A Representative’s voting rights will be suspended anytime the 

Member is not in Good Standing. 

2.2.10. Voting 

All matters will be decided by a vote of one vote per Member, per action item.  The Board Chair and Vice Chair are 

voting members on all items. A vote must pass by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Representatives in 

attendance, except those matters requiring Super-Majority approval.  In case of a tie in votes on any motion, the 

motion then fails. 

2.2.11. Super-Majority Voting 

The following items will require Super-Majority voting: 

 Termination or withdrawal of a Member; 

 Adjustments to the amount a Member pays as its proportionate share of Network operations and 

maintenance cost pursuant to Section 3.3.2 of this Agreement; 

 Annual Budget Adoption; 

 Approving capital projects;  

 Awarding a contract in excess of 10% of the RWC’s overall budget; 

Page 66



 Selecting or removing the Administrative Manager; 

 Selecting or removing the Network Administrator;  

 Selecting or removing the Executive Director; and 

 Dissolving the RWC.  

The Board may revise the foregoing list by a Super-Majority vote.   

2.2.12. Advisory Committees 

The Board will establish, and the Executive Director will facilitate, the following:  the Executive Committee, the User 

Working Group(s), and the Technical Working Group.  The Board or the Executive Director may establish additional 

advisory or ad hoc committees as needed. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, each advisory committee will 

choose a chairperson and vice-chairperson and will establish key performance indicators and rules for conducting 

meetings and representation.  The Executive Director or designee must be a participant on each committee.  The 

committees will coordinate all activities through the Executive Committee and, unless otherwise directed by the Board 

or the Executive Director, must meet at least quarterly and provide status reports based on key performance indicators 

and other committee activities to the Board at least annually.  

2.2.13.  Executive Committee   

The Executive Committee’s purpose is to: (1) provide the RWC high level expertise in communications and operations; 

(2) advise the Board; (3) help direct the Executive Director’s efforts; and (4) provide the RWC intermediate strategic 

direction. Prior to submittal to the Board, the Executive Committee must review and approve proposals and 

recommendations, budget and financial reports, audits, Network performance reports, and Board meeting agendas. 

The Executive Committee will have the authority to return proposals and recommendations back to the originator for 

review and revision. 

2.2.13.1. Representation 

The Executive Committee will consist of no less than five (5) delegates nominated by any Member and appointed by 

the Executive Director. The Executive Director is an Executive Committee non-voting member.  Delegates, selected 

from the RWC Membership, will be comprised of at least: one (1) Police Department executive; one (1) Fire 

Department executive; one (1) General Government Service Entity executive; one (1) Chief Information Officer (or 

equivalent); and one (1) executive from a Network Administrator. The Executive Committee must not have a majority 

of delegates from one Member unless otherwise determined by vote of the Board.  

2.2.13.2. Chair and Vice Chair 

The Executive Committee will elect one of the Representatives as Chair.  The Chair will be the presiding officer of the 

Executive Committee and shall serve a two-year term.  The Chair will not serve more than two consecutive terms.  

The Executive Committee must elect one of the Representatives as Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair will execute the duties 

of the Chair during the absence or disability of the Chair. 

During the absence or disability of the Chair and Vice-Chair, the Executive Committee will elect a temporary presiding 

officer from the attending Executive Committee Representatives. 

Page 67



2.2.13.3. Meetings 

The Executive Committee will meet quarterly except to the extent that the Executive Committee determines to 

meet more or less frequently.  

 

2.2.13.4. Special Meetings 

A Committee Member with approval of the Chair may call a special meeting of the Executive Committee upon a 

minimum of five (5) Working days’ notice to the other Committee Members.  In the event of an emergency, a 

meeting may be scheduled and noticed with less than five (5) Working Days’ notice provided notice is given to the 

Committee Members and the public in compliance with Arizona Open Meetings Law and a quorum is present. 

 

2.2.13.5. Quorum 

A quorum is required to conduct business.  To constitute a quorum, a majority of the total number of the Executive 

Committee’s Representatives must be present. 

 

2.2.13.6. Attendance 

Unless the Board Chair otherwise directs upon prior notice, an Executive Committee Representative may attend 

and participate in a meeting in person, by teleconference, or by video-conference, if the possibility of such method 

of attendance is set forth in the meeting notice.   

2.3. Administrative Management  

2.3.1. Administrative Manager  

The Administrative Manager is responsible for day-to-day RWC administrative responsibilities that include, but are not 

limited to: (1) procuring resources, materials, and services; (2) establishing functions such as accounting, budgeting, 

contracting, purchasing, and inventory; (3) providing reports; and (4) performing other duties as assigned, and 

identified in the Board-approved RWC Policies and Procedures.  The Administrative Manager will be reimbursed by the 

Members for all costs incurred as a result of performing its responsibilities. 

2.3.2. Network Administrator  

The Network Administrator is responsible for network operations, planning, monitoring, optimization, management, 
coordination, technical implementation and other duties as assigned, and identified in the Board-approved RWC Policies 
and Procedures. 

2.3.3. Network Manager(s)  

A Network Manager is responsible for: (1) the day-to-day operations and maintenance of an assigned portion of the 

RWC Network to comply with policies, procedures, and performance standards; and (2) performing other duties as 

assigned, and identified in the Board-approved RWC Policies and Procedures. 

2.3.4. Encryption Services Manager  

The Encryption Services Manager is responsible for managing encryption keys and process, and performing other 

duties as assigned by the Board or as identified in the Board-approved RWC Policies and Procedures. 

 

Page 68



 

2.3.5. Encryption Services Operator(s)  

The Encryption Services Operator is responsible for performing encryption management services as delegated by the 

Encryption Services Manager and performing other duties as assigned by the Board, or as identified in the Board-

approved RWC Policies and Procedures. 

 

2.3.6. Executive Director  

2.3.6.1. Responsibilities 

The Executive Director will report to the Board and serve as a non-voting member of the Executive Committee. The 
Executive Director has day-to-day RWC administrative responsibilities that include, but are not limited to: (1)  
coordinating efforts of the Board, Executive Committee and advisory group delegates; (2) preparing and maintaining 
meeting notices, agendas and minutes; (3) managing the overall RWC administrative organizational structure and 
staffing; (4) maintaining the RWC Policies and Procedures in coordination with the Executive Committee and Board; (5) 
providing reports; and (6) performing other duties as assigned and identified in the Board-approved RWC Policies and 
Procedures. 

2.3.6.2. Executive Director Selection 

 
The Board Chair will appoint a committee of at least three Members with the assistance of the Administrative 
Manager, to recommend an Executive Director to perform RWC administrative duties. The Board shall vote to either 
approve or not approve such Executive Director recommendation. The Executive Director will serve until he or she 
resigns or is removed by the Board. 
 
3. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

3.1. General 

The Administrative Manager, acting through the Executive Director, is responsible for all RWC financial management 

responsibilities including, but not limited to, fund management, budget development, rates and fees, Member billing, 

vendor invoicing, procurement, financial reporting, grant management, and financial audits.  

 

The Administrative Manager is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the RWC financial statements 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in the United States of America as applied to 

governmental units; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of budgets, accounting records, and 

internal controls. 

 

The Board of Directors must develop a fee structure to ensure adequate resources are available to support operations 

and maintenance and any needed capital improvements.  The Board of Directors will annually review the fee structure 

as part of its annual budget adoption and at any other times that the Board deems necessary. 

 

Each year, the Board of Directors must approve an annual budget. The budget will consist of the following accounts; 
(1) operations and maintenance; (2) capital; and (3) any other accounts determined by the Board. 
 

3.2. Budget and Financial Planning and Reporting 

No later than November 30th of each year, unless the Board of Directors directs a different date, the Executive Director 

in cooperation with the Administrative Manager must prepare and present to the Executive Committee, a (1) 

Page 69



preliminary budget for the subsequent Fiscal Year, (2) a five-year financial forecast (“FYFF”), and (3) fund balance 

reports (“FBR”). Unless the Board of Directors otherwise directs a different approval date by Super-Majority Vote, no 

later than December 31st of each year, the Board must approve, (1) the Final Budget for the subsequent Fiscal Year; (2) 

a FYFF; and (3) FBR. The Final Budget must include all funding sources, operational and maintenance costs, as well as 

planned capital costs for the upcoming year.  The FYFF must include operational and maintenance costs, capital costs, 

and fund balance for the five (5) years following the Final Budget period.  The FYFF will be used to prepare annual 

budgets for future years.  After presentation to the Executive Committee, the proposed Final Budget, FYFF, FBR, and 

presentation of significant issues and financial assumptions shall be forwarded to the Board for approval. The budget 

approved by the Board must be the basis for developing the Member Fee (defined in Section 3.3.2 below). A copy of 

the adopted budget must be made available (1) for access by the public and (2) to each Member. 

After the end of each Fiscal Year, the Executive Director must submit to the Executive Committee and Board a 

summary of financial activity, including a comparison of budgeted expenditures to actual expenditures. 

3.3. Funding 

3.3.1. General.   

The Members will fund the RWC through annual fees, Special Assessments, and grants, as determined by the Board 

Members will advance funds to the Administrative Manager on a quarterly basis upon receipt of an invoice.  Payment 

of all invoices is due forty-five (45) days from the invoice date.  A late payment charge on the current unpaid amount 

and any past due late fees will be assessed at the rate of one percent (1%) per month. Interest collected will be 

deposited into the appropriate RWC fund to be used to offset operating, maintenance or project costs.  

In the event a Member disputes a billed amount, it must do so in writing to the Executive Director and must specify the 

reason upon which the protest is based within forty-five (45) days after service of an invoice or receipt of fiscal year-

end reconciliation.  The Member must pay the disputed amount, but may do so under protest.  After the protest has 

been filed and the disputed amount has been paid, the dispute must be handled in accordance with the dispute 

resolution terms and conditions outlined in Section 9.3. of this agreement.  

If a Member withdraws from the Network, that Member will be responsible for all unpaid fees and entitled to any fee 

refunds applicable for time of the Member’s Membership. 

It shall be the responsibility of each Member to bill and collect from its individual departments and divisions all charges 

as are required in the payment of the amounts due under this Agreement.   

It will be the responsibility of each Party to this Agreement to take the appropriate steps in conformity with state or 

local laws to ensure that it appropriates sufficient funds to cover the obligations it assumes under this Agreement. 

Each Party recognizes that the performance by the Parties under this Agreement may be dependent upon the 

appropriation of funds to or by that Party. Should any Party fail to appropriate the necessary funds, or default on 

payments to the RWC, the Board may require that party to immediately withdraw from this Agreement on the last day 

of the fiscal period for which funds are legally available. Notwithstanding Section 9.4 or anything to the contrary in this 

Agreement, subject to Board approval, the RWC shall retain use of such portion of the Member’s Real Property and 

Member Personal Property as the Board determines is necessary to the continued functioning of the network; 

however, the Board must endeavor to procure a satisfactory replacement for such property. Each Party agrees to give 

notice to the other Parties as soon as reasonably possible after the unavailability of funds comes to the Party's 

attention.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section 3.3.1, the ownership of personal property and real property 

that is used in the Network shall be governed by Section 4 of this Agreement. 

Page 70



3.3.2. Member Fees, Payments, Allocations  

Each Member agrees to pay fees assessed on a quarterly basis unless otherwise directed by the Board.   Invoices are 

sent by the Administrative Manager in the months of July, October, January, and April of each year (“Member Fee”) to 

cover the cost of RWC administrative services (“RWC Administrative Services”) including allocated insurance 

premiums, self-insurance costs, costs of Claims, contingencies, Network operations and maintenance services, and 

capital projects, and other appropriate fees as set forth in the annual budget adopted by the Board.  The 

Administrative Manager will deposit each Member’s Member Fee into an account as designated by the Board that 

must only be used for RWC purposes.  The Administrative Manager will draw down the actual costs incurred and 

report to the Members at least quarterly regarding withdrawals from such account.  The Administrative Manager may 

change the method of payment for the Member Fee subject to the Board’s approval.  The Member Fee is intended to 

fund the Board approved operations and maintenance budget for the current Fiscal Year in addition to the amount 

approved by the Board for the subsequent year’s infrastructure replacement and enhancement projects.   

The prorated portion of the Member Fee that is intended to fund capital projects shall increase RWC Capital Equity, as 

established under Subsection 3.4, only to the extent that funds are deposited in the Capital Project Fund(s) as 

described in Subsection 3.3.2.3. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Subsection 3.3.2 and Subsection 3.3.2.3, the Board upon Super-Majority Vote 

may adjust the amount a Member pays as its Member Fee.  The Member Fee for such Member may be adjusted if the 

Board reasonably finds factors or circumstances are such that the formula used to determine the amount such 

Member pays for its Member Fee results in an unfair or inequitable assessment to that Member or to the other 

Members.  

 

3.3.2.1. RWC Operating Fund   

The portion of the Member Fee assessed by the Board and collected by the Administrative Manager to cover the cost 

of RWC Administrative Services, operations and maintenance, and contingency, will be deposited in the RWC 

Operating Fund.  

3.3.2.2. Operating Fund Contingency Balance 

The Board will establish and maintain an operating Fund Contingency Balance.  The Board will maintain an Operating 

Fund Contingency Balance equal to twelve and one half percent (12.5%) of yearly budgeted total operation and 

maintenance costs or as otherwise determined by the Board. The Operating Fund Contingency Balance initially will be 

established semi-annually in the first year and maintained annually thereafter.  The Board will establish the method for 

determining each Member’s financial obligation to the Operating Fund Contingency Balance. The use of the Operating 

Fund Contingency Balance must be approved by the Board. 

 

3.3.2.2.1. Operating Fund Settlement 

After the end of each Fiscal Year, the Executive Director must prepare the RWC Operating Fund settlement statement 

by comparing fees assessed to actual expenditures paid.  Each year, the Board must approve the distribution method 

for year-end reconciliation. 

3.3.2.3.   Capital Project Fund(s)  

The Administrative Manager will deposit into the Capital Project Fund(s) the portion of the Member Fee assessed and 

collected to cover Board approved infrastructure replacements and enhancements and to maintain the minimum 

Page 71



Capital Project Fund(s) balance.  Subsidiary records for each Member will be maintained. Interest or interest expense 

will be applied monthly to each subsidiary account based on the average daily balance during the month.  The interest 

rate applied will be the rate earned in the Administrative Manager’s pooled cash account. 

3.3.2.3.1. Minimum Balance 

The Board may establish a minimum balance for the Capital Project Fund(s) contingency for the following fiscal year by 

September 30th of each year.  Should the Board not establish a new minimum balance for the following fiscal year by 

September 30th, the then-current minimum balance shall remain in effect for the following fiscal year.   

3.3.2.3.2. Approved Uses 

The Capital Project Fund(s) must be used only for infrastructure replacements and enhancements approved by the 

Board except in the event of a major failure, disaster or force majeure event that necessitates immediate action to 

restore the Network to operating condition.  In such cases, the Executive Director is authorized to expend funds 

without first obtaining Board approval.  The Executive Director will report to the Board at the next Board meeting the 

funds that were expended for ratification of the expenditure and Special Assessment, if necessary. The Administrative 

Manager will not expend funds that will cause the Capital Project Fund(s) to be in a deficit position at any time. 

3.3.3. Special Assessments 

The Board may assess other fees on an as needed basis to: (1)  pay the costs of unplanned projects such as disaster 

recovery, certain extraordinary claims or lawsuits; (2)  pay the costs for uninsured casualty losses, regulatory fines or 

insurance deductibles; (3)  pay for the use of the Network by an Interoperability Participant, Conditional Participant, 

Network Partner or Associate; or (4)  pay the costs of special projects or system changes, replacements and/or 

expansions not previously included in the budget.  Such changes may not benefit all Members in a proportionate 

manner.  The Board may assess fees proportionately or individually and such fees need not be equal among Members.  

The Administrative Manager will deposit such fees collected as a Special Assessment into a special revenue fund. 

3.3.4. Project Settlements  

On an annual basis and also after the project is completed, the Administrative Manager will prepare the project’s 

subsidiary account reconciliation statement by comparing fees assessed and paid to actual expenditures paid.  If such 

reconciliation shows actual expenditures exceeded fees assessed and paid, the Administrative Manager will bill the 

applicable Member(s) for an amount sufficient to cover the shortage.  After project completion, if the reconciliation 

shows expenditures are less than the fees assessed and paid, the Administrative Manager must either refund the 

unused fees or apply a credit to the appropriate Member(s) account(s).  When more than one Member is funding a 

project, the Administrative Manager will transmit to each Member billings and refunds in accordance with the Board 

approved funding plan for the project. 

3.3.5. Applicant Impact Assessment Fee 

The RWC may require an Applicant to pay an Impact Assessment Fee to cover the cost of developing an Impact 

Assessment that addresses the Applicant’s request for RWC membership and the Applicant’s potential effect on the 

existing RWC infrastructure and the Members. 

3.3.5.1. New Member Special Assessment 

The Board may require a new Member to pay a one-time Special Assessment in an amount up to the full cost 

associated with providing services to the new Member. The New Member Special Assessment may include the cost to 

Page 72



provide service to the new Member’s Subscriber Units, Network infrastructure investment necessary to increase 

Network capacity, and other costs deemed necessary to ensure existing Members receive the same services and 

benefits they received before the new Member joined the Network.  The New Member Special Assessment shall be 

paid in accordance with the terms and conditions established by the Board.   

3.3.5.2. Existing Member Capacity and Coverage Upgrade  

If any existing Member(s) make a request for a capacity, coverage and/or performance change or upgrade that is 

expected to impact the Network coverage, capacity and/or performance of other Members, the Board may require 

such existing Member(s) to pay a Special Assessment to cover the cost of an Impact Assessment.  The Technical 

Working Group will provide an analysis and recommendation regarding the existing Member’s request for a capacity, 

coverage and/or performance upgrade and forward the information to the Executive Committee for review and 

recommendation to the Board for final approval.   

3.3.6. Grants 

The Administrative Manager may proceed to obtain grant funding on behalf of the RWC with approval of the Board. 

Any matching funds required by a grant towards a Network wide project will be assessed to the Members based on an 

appropriate allocation method determined by the Board.  

 

3.4.  RWC Capital Equity  

RWC Capital Equity and each Member’s Equity will be recalculated when: (1) A Member contributes assets to the RWC; 

or (2) an enhancement, expansion or replacement is completed by the RWC.   

At Fiscal Year-end after each Member’s payments into the Capital Project Fund(s) are applied, actual expenditures are 

allocated against each Member’s account, and interest is applied to each Member’s cash balance. 

If a Member brings assets to the RWC and the Board accepts the assets on behalf of the RWC, the Member’s Equity will 

increase based on the value of the assets at the time of transfer to the RWC, as agreed upon by the contributing 

Member and the Administrative Managing Member.  Assets that are individually owned, as permitted in Section 4 of 

this Agreement, will not be counted as part of the RWC Net Position, and the Member(s) owning those assets shall not 

receive credit towards equity in the Network until those assets become part of the RWC as described in Section 4.3 of 

this Agreement. 

3.5. Annual Audit 

RWC financial records will be independently audited annually.  The Board will determine the scope of work for the 
independent annual financial audit. 
 
4. RWC ASSETS, MAINTENANCE, AND OWNERSHIP  

4.1. Member’s Retention of Assets. 

4.1.1. Real Property 

Each Member shall retain (as Member Retained Property) any and all right, title and interest in the Member Real 

Property that the Member authorizes or allows the RWC to use as part of the Network unless such Member Real 

Property is transferred to the RWC as provided in Section 4.3 below, which real property after such transfer shall 

become RWC Capital Equity and shall be credited to the Member’s Equity.  Such Member Retained (Real) Property may 

Page 73



be disposed of by the Member only if such disposal does not adversely affect the Network, and provided such disposal 

is approved by the Board as set forth in Section 4.4 below.  The RWC may replace any Member Real Property that was 

used by, but not transferred to, the RWC, upon Board approval and notice to the contributing Member, and such 

Member Real Property shall no longer be encumbered by this Agreement.    

 

4.1.2.   Personal Property 

Each Member will retain any and all right, title and interest in its Member Personal Property that is used by the RWC in 

connection with the Network, where desired by such Member.  Such Member Retained (Personal) Property may be 

disposed of by the Member only if such disposal does not adversely affect the Network, and provided such disposal is 

approved by the Board as set forth in Section 4.4 below.   The RWC may replace personal property that was solely 

owned by a Member and used by the RWC, but not transferred to the RWC, upon Board approval and notice to the 

contributing Member, and such Member Personal Property shall no longer be encumbered by this Agreement.     

 

4.2. RWC’s Maintenance of Member Real Property and Member Personal Property  

The Member and the RWC must enter into an agreement regarding the conditions concerning the Network’s use and 

maintenance of the Member’s Real Property and Member Personal Property.  Otherwise, each Member is responsible 

for the cost of maintaining its Member Real Property (including fixtures thereto) and Member Personal Property that 

are made part of the Network, to the extent necessary to maintain the operational integrity and capacity necessary to 

operate the Network. Each Member agrees that it will make all reasonable arrangements necessary to allow the 

Administrative Manager, Network Administrator, or Network Manager reasonable access to that Member’s Real 

Property and Member Personal Property that are part of the Network for the purposes of inspecting, operating, and 

maintaining the Network.  Unless otherwise provided by agreement, prior to exercising the right of inspection 

provided by this section, the Administrative Manager, Network Administrator, or Network Manager must give the 

Member whose property is to be inspected reasonable notice under the circumstances then existing. 

 

4.3. RWC Acquired Real and Personal Property 

 

All real and personal property purchased by and on behalf of the RWC will be included in the RWC Capital Equity.  The 

Board must approve any transfer of real or personal property by a Member to the RWC. Any real or personal property 

purchased by or on behalf of the RWC shall be considered RWC Assets and shall be held for the benefit of the 

Members.  The future maintenance, upgrade, replacement or incurred expenses of any transferred real or personal 

property become the sole responsibility of the RWC.  Each Member’s equitable ownership interest in the RWC Assets 

will be proportionate to the amount of its Member’s Equity.  The Members agree that any real or personal property 

jointly purchased for the RWC’s benefit or transferred to the RWC by a Member will be titled and held in the name of 

the Administrative Manager, even though all financially contributing Members to the purchase of such property shall 

actually own a percentage share in such real or personal property, as set forth above.   

 

4.4. Sale or Removal of Real and Personal Property Owned by or Used by the RWC in Connection with the 

Network 

Unless delegated by the Board to the Administrative Manager, the Board will determine whether to approve the sale 

or disposal of any RWC owned Network real or personal property.  In the event of a sale, the Members shall share in 

the proceeds, considerations or benefits, if any, from the sale in proportion to Members’ Equity at the time of sale.   If 

the Board elects to dispose of RWC Assets that formerly were Member Real Property or Member Personal Property, 

Page 74



such disposal shall not occur until the contributing Member is given a reasonable opportunity to pay the fair market 

value, or make other Board-approved arrangement, to re-acquire the property.     

 

4.5. Liens on Real or Personal Property Used in connection with the Network 

If any obligations of a Member issued to finance any real or personal property made a part of the Network are secured 

by any right, title, interest or lien in or upon such property (a “Finance Lien”), the rights of the RWC and the Members 

in and to such property, including the rights to use such property as part of the Network, will at all times be 

subordinate and subject to such Finance Lien and the rights of the holder or holders of such Finance Lien.  If such 

financing was obtained after the RWC was given the right to use the Member’s Real Property or Member Personal 

Property, then the terms and conditions of such financing shall provide RWC the reasonable opportunity to cure any 

default or non-appropriation to allow the RWC and its Members continued Network use of such Member Real 

Property or Member Personal Property.   

 

4.6. Actions Must Preserve Tax Exempt Status of Obligations. 

 

Neither the RWC nor any Member will take or fail to take any action with respect to the use and operation of the 

Network that would adversely affect the tax-exempt or tax-advantaged status of any obligations issued by any 

Member to finance any real or personal property that is part of the Network.  Without limiting the foregoing, neither 

the RWC nor any Member will permit any private business use of the Network where such private business use would 

cause any Member’s obligations to lose tax exempt or tax advantaged status under the Internal Revenue Code, as 

amended. 

5. INSURANCE  

5.1. Real Property 

Each Member is responsible to insure at appropriate and sufficient coverage levels its Member’s Real Property, 

including fixtures thereto.  Each Member that has licensed real property, including fixtures thereto, to be used in 

connection with the RWC Network is responsible to insure such property according to the terms of the license 

agreement and at appropriate and sufficient coverage levels. 

The Administrative Manager is responsible to insure real property cooperatively purchased or licensed for the benefit 

of the RWC as directed and at coverage levels approved by the Board.  The Administrative Manager also is responsible 

for insuring, as directed and at coverage levels approved by the Board, all real property used in connection with the 

Network and that a Member has transferred ownership of to the RWC under this Agreement.  Neither the Board nor 

the Administrative Manager shall be responsible for a loss involving Member Real Property.  

5.2. Personal Property 

Each Member is responsible to insure at appropriate and sufficient coverage levels its Member Personal Property titled 

in its own name.  Each Member that has leased or licensed personal property to be used in connection with the RWC 

Network is responsible to insure the leased or licensed personal property according to the terms of the lease or license 

and at appropriate and sufficient coverage levels. 

The Administrative Manager is responsible to insure personal property cooperatively purchased or leased for the 

benefit of the RWC as directed and at coverage levels approved by the Board. The Administrative Manager is 

Page 75



responsible for insuring, as directed and at coverage levels approved by the Board, all personal property used in 

connection with the Network and that a Member has transferred ownership to the RWC under this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, any and all personal property that is purchased or owned exclusively by a 

Member and brought into the Network by that Member must be insured by such Member at appropriate and 

sufficient coverage levels. Neither the Board nor the Administrative Manager shall be responsible for a loss involving 

Member Personal Property.  

5.3. Liability Insurance; Indemnification 

Each Party understands and acknowledges that any Claim may be filed for damages resulting from acts or omissions in 

connection with planning, designing, constructing, operating, maintaining, and financing the Network or that other 

unforeseen costs and expenses may be incurred in connection with the planning, designing, constructing, operating, 

maintaining and financing the Network. The Parties agree that except to the extent this Agreement provides 

otherwise, a Claim will be shared by the Parties in proportion to each Party’s share of the total number of Subscriber 

Units at the time the Claim is first served on the RWC or any Party. Each Party must promptly notify the Board and the 

Administrative Manager upon receipt of any Claim relating to the Network. The Administrative Manager will take the 

lead role on behalf of the RWC in coordinating the investigation and defense of any Claim made in connection with 

planning, designing, constructing, operating, maintaining or financing the Network; provided, however, that the 

Members must reimburse the Administrative Manager for all damages, costs and expenses of whatever kind (including 

but not limited to attorneys’ fees and litigation expenses) incurred by the Administrative Manager as a result of such 

obligation. Nothing in this section will preclude any Party, at its expense, from providing its own legal counsel in 

connection with any Claim made in connection with planning, designing, constructing, operating, maintaining or 

financing the Network.  Each Member is responsible to insure its liability relating to its RWC membership or liability 

that is not assumed by the RWC under this Agreement.  With regard to any Claim arising out of or relating to the 

ownership or maintenance of Member Retained Property, such Member (as "Indemnitor") agrees to indemnify, 

defend, and hold harmless the other Members (as "Indemnitees") for, from, and against any Claim, but only to the 

extent that such Claim results in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitees and are caused by the act, omission, 

negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers. The 

RWC, Board, Executive Director, Administrative Manager, Network Administrator, Network Manager, and Encryption 

Manager will not be liable for any Claim arising out of, based upon or attributable to any other Member's failure or 

omission in effecting or maintaining adequate insurance on its Member Retained Property.  

The Board will authorize appropriate RWC insurance coverage to protect RWC from risks and potential liability under 

this Agreement and in connection with planning, designing, constructing, operating, maintaining or financing the 

Network   The Board will direct the Administrative Manager to obtain such insurance on behalf of the RWC. In deciding 

what insurance coverage and indemnities are appropriate, the Board may elect to self-insure for all or a portion of the 

risks. 

5.4. Insurance Programs 

The RWC, Board, individual Members and the Administrative Manager may use any combination of insurance, excess 

insurance or self-insurance to satisfy the terms of Section 5. 

6. OPERATIONAL CONTROL AND DUTIES (PROGRAMMING AND CAPABILITIES) 

6.1. Network Systems 

Page 76



The Network Administrator will program, maintain, and manage all Network systems in a manner consistent with 

maximizing the operational performance and minimizing the loss or corruption of data. The Network Administrator is 

responsible for RWC Network systems’ programming, maintenance, backup and archiving.   

6.2. Policies and Procedures 

Unless otherwise specified by the Board, the Executive Director will develop and maintain the RWC Policies and 

Procedures in coordination with the Executive Committee.  At a minimum, the Executive Director must review all RWC 

Policies and Procedures every two years.  Revisions to the RWC Policies and Procedures must be approved by the 

Board. The Executive Director may consider specific revisions at any time upon request by any Representative or 

Alternate Representative, and may set such requests as a future agenda item for consideration and approval by the 

Board. 

7. SERVICES 

7.1. Network Use, Programming and Reprogramming, Encryption 

When using the Network each Member, Associate, Interoperability Participant, and Conditional Participant will abide 

by all policies, procedures and guidelines established by the RWC and the terms and conditions of all applicable 

agreements including, without limitation, this Agreement.  

7.2. Interoperability 

The RWC will support interoperability among all Members, Associates, Conditional and Interoperability Participants. 

The RWC will follow the National Incident Management System (NIMS) protocols for interoperable communications.  

7.3. Training 

Each Member, Associate, Conditional and Interoperability Participant must ensure that its users are properly trained 

on the Network capabilities, policies and procedures.  

7.4. Requests for Service 

7.4.1. Routine Service 

The Technical Working Group, subject to Board approval, will establish policies and procedures relating to Network 

Services.     

7.4.2. Expanded Service 

Members requiring or desiring expanded Network Services that may impact the Network must submit these requests 

in writing to the Executive Director.  Examples of such expanded services include, without limitation, requests to: (1) 

add sites to the Network; (2) to increase system performance or coverage; or (3) to implement a Network upgrade in 

order to receive a new feature.  Criteria for expanded services will be evaluated by the process set forth in 2.1.5.1.   

Such services shall be approved, if at all, by the Board. 

7.4.3. Emergency Service 

The policies and procedures for Network Services must address emergency situations, tactical response to such 

emergencies, and the decision making authority for such emergencies.  The policies and procedures must include 

Page 77



notification requirements.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 7.4.3, the Executive Director at all 

times has the authority to provide access to the Network in emergency situations. 

7.4.4. Network Resources 

Unless otherwise directed by the Board, the Network Administrator in coordination with the Technical Working Group 

establishes and approves all Network Resource Plans.  These plans are used to develop the radio programming files.   

7.4.4.1. Network Resource Priorities 

Unless otherwise directed by the Board, the User Working Groups must establish priority levels for the individual 

Network Resource Priorities. In general, Network Resource Priorities are assigned highest to lowest as follows: (1) 

emergency calls; (2) Public Safety calls; and (3) General Government Service Entities’ calls. 

8. MAINTENANCE 

8.1. Subscriber Unit Maintenance and Repair Responsibility 

Each Member, Associate, Interoperability Participant, and Conditional Participant is solely responsible for the 

maintenance and repair of its Subscriber Units.  

 

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.1. Limitations 

No RWC Board Member will be liable to the RWC for monetary damages for any action taken or any failure to take 

action as a Board Member. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, the RWC will indemnify any director, officer, 

Executive Director, Administrative Manager, Network Administrator, Network Manager, Encryption Manager, 

Encryption Service Operator, Member, Representative, or Alternate Representative (each an “Indemnified Party”, and 

collectively the “Indemnified Parties”) from any liability or expense sought or imposed because such person is made 

party to a proceeding because he/she is a director, officer, Executive Director, Administrative Manager, Member, 

Representative, or Alternate Representative of the RWC. No Indemnified Party will be personally liable to the RWC or 

its Members for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, officer, Executive Director, 

Administrative Manager, Representative, or Alternate Representative. The limitation of liability provided herein will 

continue after the Indemnified Party has ceased to occupy such position as to acts or omissions occurring during such 

director's term or terms of office, and no amendment or repeal of this Section 9.1will apply to or have any effect on 

the liability or alleged liability of any Indemnified Party for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such Indemnified 

Party occurring prior to such amendment or repeal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this Section 

9.1are expressly subject to, and shall not be interpreted in a manner that would conflict with or cause violation of, 

Applicable Law.  

9.2. Dissolution 

If the Board determines that it is not feasible or desirable to continue the RWC activities, then, after complying with 

applicable federal or state dissolution procedures, assets of the RWC will be returned to the Members in proportion to 

their RWC Capital Equity. 

 

Page 78



9.3. Conflict Resolution 

9.3.1. Mediation 

If a complaint, dispute or controversy (hereinafter complaint) arises between any of the Parties to this Agreement, it is 

hereby agreed that the complaint will be brought to the Board for non-binding conflict resolution. The Board will have 

the authority to establish appropriate and reasonably prompt procedures to govern the processing of all complaints 

and an internal conflict resolution process. 

The Parties agree that, at any point in the conflict resolution process, the Board may adopt and impose an interim 

emergency remedy to ensure the continuation of essential communication services until the matter is resolved.  

9.3.2. Injunctive Relief 

Nothing in this Agreement will prohibit any Party from seeking injunctive relief for the preservation of property. In the 

event any of the conflict resolution procedures are ruled unlawful or made unlawful by statute, the other terms of this 

Agreement are declared separate and severable and will remain in full force and effect. 

9.3.3. Arbitration 

In the event a dispute is not resolved pursuant to Section 9.3.1 of this Agreement, the Parties agree to use arbitration 

if arbitration is required by A.R.S. § 12-133 or A.R.S. § 12-1518. 

9.3.4. Cooperation 

9.3.4.1. Generally 

The Parties agree to make, sign and deliver all documents and to perform all acts that are necessary to fully carry out 

the terms of this Agreement. Each of the Parties will fully cooperate with and assist one another in obtaining all 

licenses, permits, authorizations, approvals, and consents required in the performance of this Agreement. Nothing in 

this Agreement will be construed or interpreted to require the RWC to be responsible for dispatching or otherwise 

causing its Members to respond to an event within another Member's jurisdiction. 

9.3.4.2. Specific Performance 

RWC may elect and will have the right to seek specific performance by any Party of any or all of the obligations set 

forth in this Agreement. The Parties agree that RWC may seek specific performance by way of special action filed in 

superior court seeking an injunction ordering the Party to perform its obligations under this Agreement. The Parties 

agree not to raise as a defense the position that there is an "adequate remedy at law." If RWC seeks specific 

performance, the Parties hereby stipulate and consent to the jurisdiction of the superior court in any such special 

action. 

9.4. Termination or Withdrawal 

Subject to Section 3.3.1 above, any Member may voluntarily terminate its participation in the RWC (i) by providing 

twenty-four (24) months written notice to the Board or (ii) by providing prompt notice in the event the Member’s 

governing body fails to appropriate sufficient funds for the Member to continue its RWC membership; in either case 

provided that the terminating Member: (a) relinquishes all Network equipment purchased or partially purchased by 

the RWC; (b) transfers or relinquishes any unexpended RWC accounts which have been collected for the replacement 

Page 79



or expansion of equipment or infrastructure; (c) pays all fees and charges owed to the RWC up to and through the 

effective date of termination; (d) agrees to pay for all costs to effect the withdrawal of the Member,  including costs to 

reconfigure the Network for the remaining Members, and (e) agrees to such additional or alternative terms and 

conditions as may be unanimously established by all Parties, including the terminating Member.   

9.5. Amendments to the Agreement 

Any Member may propose an amendment or an addendum to this Agreement to the Executive Director. The Executive 

Director will make a recommendation to the Board. The Board must vote on any amendments or addendums brought 

to it by the Executive Director. This Agreement may be recommended for amendment to the Parties’ respective 

governing bodies only by a written document approved and executed after a Super-Majority vote of the Members.   

Upon a Super-Majority vote of the Members, each Member will take appropriate steps in conformity with state and 

local law to authorize and approve the proposed amendment or addendum.  Each Member must file a copy of the 

appropriate resolution, ordinance or other recorded action by which its legislative or governing body approved the 

amendment with the Executive Director of the RWC.  No such amendment shall be effective until approved by the 

governing bodies of the Parties to this Agreement. 

9.6. Entire Agreement  

This Agreement, together with the IGA, contains the entire agreement and understanding among the Parties 

concerning the subject hereof and supersedes and replaces all prior negotiations, agreements and proposed 

agreements, written or oral, relating thereto. Each of the Parties hereto acknowledges that no other Party, nor any 

agent or attorney of any Party, has made any promise, representation, or warranty whatsoever, expressed or implied, 

not contained herein concerning the subject matter hereof, to induce it to execute this Agreement and acknowledges 

that this Agreement has not been executed in reliance on any promise, representation or warranty not contained 

herein.  

9.7. Existing and Future Agreements. 

9.7.1. Incorporation in Future Agreements 

The Parties agree that the provisions of this Agreement will be incorporated in any future subcontracts between the 

RWC, the Parties and any other person, political subdivision or public agency that contracts with RWC or any Party to 

make use of the Network. 

9.7.2. No Subcontracts for Network Use without Board Approval 

The Parties agree that they will not enter into subcontracts for the use of the Network without the prior approval of 

the Board, which will have the authority to review the subcontracts for conformity with the rights and obligations set 

forth in this Agreement. 

9.7.3. Modification of Existing Network Contracts between any of the Parties 

The Parties agree that this Agreement is a modification of all existing governance agreements between the Parties in 

regard to the Network. In the event of any conflict, inconsistency, or incongruity between the provisions of this 

Agreement and any of the provisions of any previous agreement between the Parties, the provisions of this Agreement 

shall in all respects govern and control. 

 

Page 80



9.7.4. Interpretation   

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted: 

9.7.4.1.1. To supersede any non-network-related contracts such as existing mutual aid agreements 

or radio support agreements between or among the Parties. 

9.7.4.1.2. To prohibit a Party from entering into separate agreements after the Effective Date of this 

Agreement concerning Member Real Property and Member Personal Property that the Party authorizes and allows the 

RWC to use as part of the Network, provided the separate agreements are consistent with this Agreement and 

compatible with the RWC's use of the property for the Network. 

9.7.4.1.3. To supersede prior existing agreements concerning a Member Real Property or Member 

Personal Property that the Party authorizes and allows the RWC to use as part of the Network. 

9.7.5. No Third Party Beneficiary 

This Agreement is entered into for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Parties, and no other person shall claim any 

implied right, benefit or interest in this Agreement. The Parties do not intend to create rights in or remedies to any 

third party as a beneficiary of this Agreement or of any duty, obligation, or undertaking established under this 

Agreement. 

9.8. Records; Confidentiality 

9.8.1. RWC Records 

The RWC will make its financial records regarding the planning, designing, constructing, operating, maintaining and 

financing the Network available to any Party to this Agreement. Such request for inspection must not be made more 

frequently than once a month. 

9.8.2. Party’s Network Records  

Each Party to this Agreement agrees to make available to the RWC its financial records related to planning, designing, 

constructing, operating, maintaining, and financing the Network. Such request for inspection may not be made more 

frequently than once a month.  

9.8.3. Confidentiality of Network Information 

To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, the Parties must treat Network information as proprietary and 

confidential. Network information includes, but is not limited to, technical data, engineering details, construction 

documents, equipment lists, programming configurations, and operational procedures. Any Party who receives a 

request for information or a public records request concerning Network information must promptly forward the 

request to the Executive Director for review and response, who shall have a reasonable amount of time to consider 

whether to object to or seek to enjoin disclosure of the requested information or any portion of it before the Party 

who received the request may disclose it.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this subsection shall prohibit any 

Member from producing non-confidential or non-proprietary documents or information pursuant to a public records 

request. 

 

Page 81



9.9. Notices 

9.9.1. Notice Form and Service 

Any notice, consent or other communications ("Notice") required or permitted under this Agreement must be in 

writing and either delivered in person, or, deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, registered, or certified 

mail, return receipt requested, or deposited with any commercial air courier or express service addressed with 

confirmed receipt to the addresses of each Member that are on file with the Executive Director. 

9.9.2. Effective Service Date 

If mailed as provided in Section 9.9.1 of this Agreement, notice will be deemed received five (5) days after the Notice is 

deposited in the U.S. mail as provided above.  If delivered as provided in Section 9.9.1 of this Agreement, a notice will 

be deemed received at the time it is personally served, or on the day received as confirmed by any commercial air 

courier or express services. Any time period stated in a Notice shall be computed from the time the Notice is deemed 

received.  

9.9.3. Change in Address 

A Party may change its mailing address or the person to receive Notice by notifying the Executive Director and the 

other Parties as provided in Section 9.9.1. 

9.10. Performance and Uncontrollable Events 

9.10.1. Performance of Party Obligation 

Unless provided otherwise in this Agreement, all terms and conditions that are to be performed by the Parties or any 

of the Parties will be performed at the sole expense of the Party so obligated, and if the RWC (or any other Party) pays 

any sum of money or does any act that requires the payment of money by reason of the failure, neglect or refusal of 

the obligated Party to perform such term or condition, the sum of money paid by the RWC (or the other Party) shall 

upon notice as required by Section 9.9.1 be payable to the RWC (or other Party) by the Party obligated to perform. 

9.10.2. Uncontrollable Event 

No Party will be considered to be in default in the performance of any obligations under this Agreement (other than 

obligations of a Party to pay costs and expenses) if failure of performance is due to an uncontrollable event. The term 

"uncontrollable event" means any cause beyond the control of the Party affected; including but not limited to flood, 

earthquake, storm, fire, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, labor dispute, action or non-action by 

(or failure to obtain the necessary authorizations or approvals from) any governmental agency or authority or the 

electorate, labor or material shortage, sabotage, and restraint by court order or public authority; that by exercise of 

due diligence and foresight the Party reasonably could not have been expected to avoid and that by exercise of due 

diligence it will be unable to overcome. A Party that is rendered unable to fulfill any obligation by reason of an 

uncontrollable event will exercise due diligence to remove such inability with all reasonable dispatch. Unavailability of 

funds shall not be deemed an uncontrollable event.  

 

 

Page 82



9.10.3. Burden of Proof regarding Uncontrollable Event 

If any Party claims that its failure to perform was due to an uncontrollable event, the Party will bear the burden of 

proof that such activity was within the meaning and intent of this section, if such claim is disputed by any Party to this 

Agreement. 

9.11. Governing Law 

This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona applicable to 

contracts executed and intended to be performed entirely within the State of Arizona by residents of the State of 

Arizona. Any action at law, suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement or any provision 

therefore shall be instituted only in the courts of Maricopa County, Arizona. 

9.12. Headings 

Article and section headings are inserted herein solely for convenience and the same will not by themselves alter, 

modify, limit, expand or otherwise affect the meaning of any provision of this Agreement. 

9.13. Assignment and Binding Effect 

This Agreement will be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors 

and assigns; provided, however, that nothing herein will relieve any Party of any obligation under this Agreement, 

except upon the express written consent of the RWC. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



Public Special Event, Revised 7/2018    1 

This application and rental agreement is to be used for events that are open to the public. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Applicant / Responsible Party Name: ______________________________________ Application Date: ______________          

Contact Phone Number:             _ Email:  _______________________________________              

Mailing Address: __________________________________        City: ___________________State:________ Zip: _____ 

Business/Organization Name: ________________________ Tax ID #: ___________ Town Sales Tax ID #: _______ 

Non-Profit:_______________________________________ 501(c)(3)#: ___________________________________  

EVENT INFORMATION 

Name of Event: ____________________________________   Anticipated # of Participants: _____________________ 

Event Date(s): _____________________________________  Event Hours:  _________________________________ 

Set-up Date and Hours: _____________________________  Take Down Date and Hours: ______________________ 

Event Site Map: submit a site map including location of equipment, features and activities with this application 

Type of Event: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Description of Event:  

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Event Social Media addresses: ________________________________________________________________________ 

EVENT PROMOTION 

Will there be an admission charge?      Yes   No   

If yes, list all price categories: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Is any other promoter/producer assisting you with your event?   Yes     No 

Name of Promoter / Production Company: __________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________City: ______________ State:___________ Zip:______  

Marketing Materials (Please attach): _____________________________________________________________________ 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio 
Public Special Event  

Application & Rental Agreement 

Page 84



 
 

Public Special Event, Revised 7/2018    2 
 

EVENT ENTERTAINMENT AND VENDORS  

Will there be entertainment?     Yes _  _No  
 
If yes, please attach a complete list of entertainment. _______________________________________________________ 
 
Will merchandise and/or food items be sold?   Yes   No  

Total Number of vendors: _____     # of Food/ Beverage Vendors: __________   # of Merchandise Vendors: ________ 

If yes, please attach a complete list of all participating vendors, one week prior to event.  
Include Vendor Business Name, Tax ID #, Sales Tax ID #, and County Food Handlers License # 
 
EVENT EQUIPMENT   

Will the event include any of the following? (Indicate on site plan and/or vendor list) 

Tents or Canopies:    Yes    No Number of Tents/ Canopies: __________ Sizes: ___________ 
 
Temporary Fencing:   Yes   No Provide accurate dimensions of fenced area on site plan. 

Port-O-Potties     Yes   No Number of: ________________ 

Electrical Services/Generators  Yes   No    Generators must be separated from tents by a minimum of 20’.  
 
Stages:      Yes    No  Number of_________ Dimensions: _______________ 

Signs / Banners    Yes   No Number of Signs/Banners: ______________________ 

EVENT FEATURES  

Inflatables:     Yes   No Company Name and Contact: _______________________ 

 Number of Inflatables: _________    Type: _____________________________________________ 

 Number of Staff: ______________    Shifts: __________/ _____________ / __________________ 

Carnival/Amusement Rides:   Yes   No Company Name and Contact:  ______________________ 

 Number of Rides: ____________       Type of Rides: _____________________________________ 

 Number of Staff: ______________    Shifts: __________/ _____________ / __________________ 

Animal Exhibits:    Yes    No  Company Name and Contact: ________________________ 

 Number of Animals: __________       Type of Animals: ___________________________________ 

 Number of Wranglers: ________        Shifts: __________/ _____________ / __________________ 

 

 

 

 

   

Page 85



 
 

Public Special Event, Revised 7/2018    3 
 

EVENT SECURITY   

Two Maricopa County Deputy Sheriffs are required for any public event, as a minimum, for the duration of the event.   

Two additional deputies are required per 100 attendees and at the discretion of the Town.   

Will the event include security, in addition to MCSO Sheriff?     Yes   No 

Security Service: _____________________    Security Contact Name: __________________ Contact Phone: _____________ 

Attach Security Service Contract:   ______    # of security personnel:  _________ Shifts: ________/ ___________ / ________ 

Describe security staff duties and locations: ___________________________________________________________________ 

EVENT ALCOHOL 

Will alcohol be served? __________ Sold? ________ Given Away? ________ Included with Admission Fee? _____ 

If you answered Yes to any of the above, a Town Council recommendation and an Arizona Department of Liquor Special 
Event State Liquor License is REQUIRED. 

 
1. Attach a copy of the State of Arizona Liquor License application. A State Liquor License will require payment to the 

Arizona Department of Liquor.    
 

2. Special Event Application requesting a Special Event State Liquor License requires application 60 days prior to the 
event and the $50.00 application processing fee 

 
Scheduled Town Council Public Meeting Hearing Date: _________________________________*  
 
* Application processing fee is required prior to scheduling the application for a Town Council Meeting.  
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT and SIGNATURE  

 
I certify that the information set forth within this application is complete, true, and correct, to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, and that I will comply with the information set forth within this application.  Acceptance of the application should in no 
way be construed as final approval or confirmation of the request. The Town of Guadalupe reserves the right to deny the 
application and it is revocable if deemed in the best interest of the Town of Guadalupe.   
 
 
Responsible Party Name: __________________________ Signature: ________________________ Date: ______________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 86



 
 

Public Special Event, Revised 7/2018    4 
 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio Rental Fee Schedule 
Fees to be submitted with Special Event Application  
 
1. Application  Fees:  

Application Processing Fee………………………………..........  $50.00 
 
Security Deposit (refundable with conditions) …………… ……  $150.00 
 
Late Fee (if submitted within 30 days of event – no alcohol)…… $100.00  
 
Town Alcohol Use Permit (does not include State of Arizona fee). $25.00  
 
Event Liability Insurance ……………………………………….. $150.00 
 

SUBTOTAL: Administrative fee: 
 
2. Hourly Patio Rental Fees (two hour minimum):  

 Hourly Rate:    
Day of Week: Resident Non-Resident Non-Profit Commercial 

Weekday: 
M,T,W,Th 

$65.00 $90.00 $65.00 $115.00 

Weekend: 
F, Sat, Sun 

$75.00 $100.00 $75.00 $125.00 

 
 

SUBTOTAL: Hourly Rental Rate:  $___________x ________ # of hours = $ _______________ 
 

3. Public Safety Fees:  

MCSO Deputy Sheriff:  # of Deputies: ____ per hour x # of total event hours: _______ = # of deputy/hours: _________                                      
 

SUBTOTAL:  MCSO Deputy Sheriff Fee: $50.00 / hour x _______ #deputy/hours = $ ________ 
 

4. Miscellaneous Town Equipment Rental fees:  

Mobile Stage ………………………………….$200 per day 
Generator ……………………………………..$100 per day 
Trash Trailer…………………………………..$50 per day – required for 100+ attendees. 
 

SUBTOTAL: Equipment fees $_________   

TOTAL PATIO RENTAL USE FEES:  amount  paid/receipt #: 
1. Application fee:  $_______ #:__________ 
2. Hourly Patio Rental fee:  $ _______  #: _________ 
3. Public Safety fee:  $ _______   #: _________ 
4. Equipment fee:  $ _______   #: _________ 

                                                                                   TOTAL: $ _______  #: _________ 
   
Payment and Cancellations:   

 
Applicant must pay all applicable fees in full for the use of the Mercado Patio, as identified in this application, one month prior to 
the date of the event.  
Event cancellation fees: $150 Security deposit refund:  Greater than 6 months – full refund; 6 months to 30 days – 50% refund; 
less than 30 days – NO refund of $150 deposit.  

Page 87



 
 

Public Special Event, Revised 7/2018    5 
 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio - Public Special Event Rental Agreement 
This rental agreement is to be used for events that are open to the public. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

For the use of the Mercado Patio, the undersigned agrees to the following terms, conditions and fees.  
Please sign at the bottom of the page to indicate your agreement.  
   

1. Enjoy and responsibly use of the Mercado Patio.  
2. Be on site and the responsible party during the entirety of the event. 
3. Be responsible for cleaning the patio after the event and provide a refundable $150.00 security deposit to guarantee 

clean up.  The security deposit will be refunded within 14 days after the event if all of the terms and conditions have 
been met.  Clean up includes removing garbage from the patio, parking lot, and adjacent grounds of the Mercado. 

4. Be responsible for the replacement cost of any missing and/or damaged fixtures and furnishings. Replacement and repair 
costs are to be determined. 

5. End event no later than 12:00 a.m. and vacate premises no later than 1:00 a.m. 
6. Maintain reasonable volumes of music and sound. 
7. Ensure access to businesses within the Mercado. 
8. Comply with event set up and tear down hours. 
9. Ensure all event security, event staff and MCSO Deputies are on duty. 
10. Responsibly enjoy alcoholic beverages and ensure all State of Arizona liquor license controls are in place. 
11. Glass bottles are permitted behind the bar only. No individual glass bottles are allowed. Individual drinks must be served 

in plastic ware. 
12. Any person under 21 years of age is not permitted to consume alcohol.  
13. All alcohol must be consumed within the confines of the Mercado patio. 
14. Alcoholic beverages are not permitted in parking lots and/or adjacent public property.  
15. Vehicles are not permitted on the Mercado patio. 
16. Pay all applicable fees in full (two hour minimum) for the use of the Mercado Patio as identified in this application, one 

month prior to the date of the event. 
17. Accept event cancellation fees: 

a. Cancellation notice more than 6 months – full refund of $150 
b. Cancellation notice from 6 months to 30 days – 50% refund of $150 
c. Cancellation notice of less than 30 days – NO REFUND 

18. T the following items are prohibited: 
a. Illegal substances 
b. Glass bottles for individual use 
c. Fireworks/explosives 
d. Weapons, firearms, knives, bats, etc.  

 
Responsible Party Signature: ___________________________________  Date: ________________  

Page 88



 
 

Public Special Event, Revised 7/2018    6 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
HOLD HARMLESS, ACKNOWLEDMENT and SIGNATURE  

 
I shall, through signing of this Rental Agreement, indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Town of Guadalupe and its agents 
and employees from all suits and actions, including reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs of litigations and judgment of every 
name and description against the Town as a result of loss, damage or injury to person or property by reason by any action of any 
kind and nature resulting from personal injury to any person, including employees of the Applicant or of any subcontractor 
employed by the Applicant or damages to any property arising or alleged to have arisen out of the negligent performance of the 
Applicant for the work to be performed hereunder, except any such injury or damages arising out of the sole negligence of the 
Town, its officers, agents or employees. 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby agree that all information contained in this application and agreement is complete, true and correct 
and agree to terms, conditions, and fees hereby set forth and shall comply with: the Town of Guadalupe Code of Ordinances; all 
other applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies and procedures, including, but not limited 
to, all rules, regulations, policies and procedures related to the authorization and regulation of Special Events.   
  
Responsible Party Signature: _____________________________________________ Date: ______________ 
 
 
PUBLIC EVENT RENTAL AGREEMENT - TOWN AUTHORIZATION/APPROVAL:  

 
Upon Town of Guadalupe authorization and approval of the event, the Town of Guadalupe reserves the right to cancel the event 
if deemed in the best interest of the Town of Guadalupe.   
 
Town Authorization/Approval: ___________________________Title: __________________  Date: ______________ 
 

 
PUBLIC EVENT RENTAL AGREEMENT – VALID FOR:  

DATE: __________________________ TIME: ________________________  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio 
9201 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Public Special Event  
Rental Agreement Approval  

 

Page 89



Private Event, Revised 7/2018  1 

    This application and rental agreement is to be used for  private events, closed to the public. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Applicant / Responsible Party Name: ______________________________________ Application Date: ______________                      

Contact Phone Number:                                                          Email:  _______________________________________              

Mailing Address: __________________________________        City: ___________________State:____ Zip: _________ 

EVENT INFORMATION 

Purpose of Event: ____________________________________    Event Date: ___________________________________ 

Anticipated # of Attendees: ___________________________  Event Hours: : _________________________________ 

Set-up:Hours: ______________________________________  Take Down Hours: _____________________________ 

Brief description of Event: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

EVENT ENTERTAINMENT AND VENDORS 

Will there be entertainment?     _Yes  No  

If yes, please attach a complete list of entertainment: ________________________________________________ 

Will merchandise and/or food items be sold?   Yes   No  

Total Number of vendors: _____     # of Food/ Beverage Vendors: __________   # of Merchandise Vendors: ________ 

If yes, please attach a complete list of all participating vendors, one week prior to event. Include Vendor Business Name, 
Tax ID #, Sales Tax ID #, and Maricopa County Food Handlers Card # 

EVENT EQUIPMENT  

Will the event include any of the following? (Indicate on site plan and/or vendor list) 

Tents or Canopies:   Yes   No Number of Tents/Canopies: _________Sizes:________ 

Temporary Fencing:   Yes  No Provide accurate dimensions of fenced area on site plan. 

Porta-Potty   Yes  No Number of: ________ 

Electrical Services/Generators  Yes  No    Generators must be separated from tents by a minimum of 20’. 

Stages:    Yes  No  Number of_________ Dimensions: _______________ 

Signs/Banners   Yes  No Number of Signs/Banners: ______________________ 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio Private Event 
Application & Rental Agreement 

Page 90



 
 

Private Event, Revised 7/2018  2 
 

EVENT SECURITY   

Two Maricopa County Deputy Sheriffs are required for private events, as a minimum, for the duration of the event.   

Two additional deputies may be required per 100 additional attendees and at the discretion of the Town.   

Will the event include security in addition to MCSO Sheriff?    Yes     No  

Security Service: _____________________    Security Contact Name: __________________  

Contact Phone#: _____________________     Attach Security Service Contract:   ________ 

If so, how many?  ___________________ Shifts: __________/ _____________ / __________________ 

Describe security staff duties and locations: _____________________________________________________ 

EVENT ALCOHOL 

 
If alcohol will be served, an approved Mercado Private Event Alcohol Use Permit is required. 

If you plan to serve alcoholic beverages, you must obtain and agree to terms of the Alcohol Use Permit, in accordance 
with Town of Guadalupe Ordinance No. 2018.01. You must agree to hire off duty deputies to supervise your event.  The 
applicant on the permit is named as the responsible party and must be present at the event the entire time alcohol is 
present.   
 

(Ord. No. 2018.01, adopted 7-12-2018, eff. 8-12-2018) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 91



 
 

Private Event, Revised 7/2018  3 
 

MERCADO PRIVATE EVENT ALCOHOL USE PERMIT 

An approved Town of Guadalupe Alcohol Use Permit is required to serve alcohol at an event.  

To serve beer at your event, you must obtain and agree to this Alcohol Use Permit and agree to hire off-duty 
MCSO deputies The applicant on the permit shall be  the responsible party and must be present at the event during the 
entire time alcohol is present.   
 

1. Permit holder must retain permit and make it available upon request.   

2. Permit is non-transferable and non-refundable. 

3. Permit is valid for the date listed below, restricted to the Mercado Patio location, and number of attendees as 
indicated in the application and rental agreement.  

4. Permit holder only is allowed to bring beer into Mercado Patio.  

5. The consumption and or possession of any spirituous liquor in the Mercado is prohibited.   

6. Inappropriate behavior or excessive noise will not be permitted. 

7. The sale of alcoholic beverages is strictly prohibited unless a State of Arizona special license and insurance are 
obtained. 

8. Permit holder will be responsible for ensuring  ALL MEMBERS of his/her party are of legal age to drink 
alcoholic beverages, according to Arizona State Law. 

9. Glass bottles are permitted behind the bar only.  No individual glass bottles are allowed.  Individual drinks must 
be served in plastic ware.  

10. Any person under 21 years of age is not permitted to consume alcohol.   

11. All alcohol must be consumed on the Mercado patio.   

12. Alcoholic beverages are not permitted in parking lots and / or adjacent public property. 

13. Vehicles must remain in parking lots and in designated parking areas. 

 
PRIVATE EVENT ALCOHOL USE PERMIT – RESPONSIBLE PARTY ACCPETANCE:  

 
As the responsible party, I certify that the information set forth within this application is complete, true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge and belief, and that I will comply with alcohol use permit terms and conditions.    
 
Responsible Party Name: ________________________ Signature: ___________________________ Date: _________ 

 
PRIVATE EVENT ALCOHOL USE PERMIT - TOWN AUTHORIZATION and APPROVAL:  

 
Upon Town of Guadalupe authorization and approval of the alcohol permit, the Town of Guadalupe reserves the right to 
revoke the permit if deemed in the best interest of the Town of Guadalupe.   
 
Town Authorization /Approval: ___________________________Title: __________________  Date: _____________ 
 
ALCOHOL USE PERMIT – VALID FOR: ________________________________________________  

Page 92



 
 

Private Event, Revised 7/2018  4 
 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio Rental Fee Schedule 
Fees to be submitted with Special Event Application  
 
1. Application  Fees:  

Application Processing Fee………………………………..........  $50.00 
 
Security Deposit (refundable with conditions) …………… ……  $150.00 
 
Late Fee (if submitted within 30 days of event – no alcohol)…… $100.00  
 
Town Alcohol Use Permit……………………………………….  $25.00  
 
Event Liability Insurance ……………………………………….. $150.00 
 

SUBTOTAL: Administrative fee: 
 
2. Hourly Patio Rental Fees (two hour minimum):  

 Hourly Rate:    
Day of Week: Resident Non-Resident Non-Profit Commercial 

Weekday: 
M,T,W,Th 

$65.00 $90.00 $65.00 $115.00 

Weekend: 
F, Sat, Sun 

$75.00 $100.00 $75.00 $125.00 

 
SUBTOTAL: Hourly Rental Rate:  $___________x ________ # of hours = $ _______________ 
 

3. Public Safety Fees:  

MCSO Deputy Sheriff:  # of Deputies: ____ per hour x # of total event hours: _______ = # of deputy/hours: _________                                      
 

SUBTOTAL:  MCSO Deputy Sheriff Fee: $50.00 / hour x _______ #deputy/hours = $ ________ 
4. Miscellaneous Town Equipment Rental fees:  

Mobile Stage ………………………………….$200 per day 
Generator ……………………………………..$100 per day 
Trash Trailer…………………………………..$50 per day – required for 100+ attendees. 
 

SUBTOTAL: Equipment fees $_________   

TOTAL PATIO RENTAL USE FEES:  amount  paid/receipt #: 
1. Application fee:  $_______ #:__________ 
2. Hourly Patio Rental fee:  $ _______  #: _________ 
3. Public Safety fee:  $ _______   #: _________ 
4. Equipment fee:  $ _______   #: _________ 

                                                                                   TOTAL: $ _______  #: _________ 
   
Payment and Cancellations:   

 
Applicant must pay all applicable fees in full for the use of the Mercado Patio, as identified in this application, one month 
prior to the date of the event.  
Event cancellation fees: $150 Security deposit refund:  Greater than 6 months – full refund; 6 months to 30 days – 50% 
refund; less than 30 days – NO refund of $150 deposit.  

 

Page 93



 
 

Private Event, Revised 7/2018  5 
 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio – 
Private Event Rental Agreement  

This rental agreement is to be used for private events, closed to the public. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

For the use of the Mercado Patio, the undersigned agrees to the following terms, conditions and fees.  
Please sign at the bottom of the page to indicate your agreement.  
   

1. Enjoy the use of the Mercado Patio with care and kindness. 
2. Be on site and the responsible party during the entirety of the event. 
3. Be responsible for cleaning the patio after the event and provide a refundable $150.00 security deposit to 

guarantee clean up.  The deposit will be refunded within 14 days after the event if all the terms and conditions 
have been met.  Clean up includes removing garbage from the patio, parking lot, and adjacent grounds of the 
Mercado. 

4. Be responsible for the replacement cost of any missing and/or damaged fixtures and furnishings. Replacement and 
repair costs are to be determined. 

5. End event no later than 12:00 a.m. and vacate premises no later than 1:00 a.m. 
6. Maintain neighborly and reasonable volumes of music and sound. 
7. Assure access to businesses within the Mercado. 
8. Comply with identified event set up and tear down hours. 
9. Assure all event security, event staff and MCSO Deputies are on duty. 
10. Comply with all terms and conditions set forth in the Alcohol Use Permit, if applicable.   
11. Vehicles are not permitted on the Mercado patio. 
12. Pay all applicable fees in full (two hour minimum) for the use of the Mercado Patio as identified in this 

application, one month prior to the date of the event. 
13. Accept cancellation fees: 

a. Cancellation notice more than 6 months – full refund of $150 
b. Cancellation notice from 6 months to 30 days – 50% refund of $150 
c. Cancellation notice of less than 30 days – NO refund 

14. Understand that the following items are prohibited: 
a. Illegal substances 
b. Glass bottles and/of containers for individual usee 
c. Fireworks/explosives 
d. Weapons, firearms, knives, bats, etc.  

 
Responsible Party Signature: ___________________________________  Date: ________________  

Page 94



 
 

Private Event, Revised 7/2018  6 
 

 
 

                
HOLD HARMLESS, ACKNOWLEDMENT and SIGNATURE  

I/We, through signing of this Rental Agreement, indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Town of Guadalupe and its 
agents and employees from all suits and actions, including reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs of litigations and 
judgment of every name and description against the Town as a result of loss, damage or injury to person or property by 
reason of any action of any kind and nature resulting from personal injury to any person, including employees of the 
Applicant or of any subcontractor employed by the Applicant or damages to any property arising or alleged to have arisen 
out of the negligent performance of the Applicant hereunder, except any such injury or damages arising out of the sole 
negligence of the Town, its officers, agents or employees. 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby agree that all information contained in this application and agreement is complete, true and 
correct and agree to terms, conditions, fees hereby set forth and shall comply with: the Town of Guadalupe Code of 
Ordinances; all other applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, policies and procedures, 
including, but not limited to, all rules, regulations, policies and procedures related to the authorization and regulation of 
Special Events.   
  
Responsible Party Signature: _____________________________________________  Date: ______________ 
 
PRIVATE EVENT RENTAL AGREEMENT - TOWN AUTHORIZATION and APPROVAL:  

 
Upon Town of Guadalupe authorization and approval of the event, the Town of Guadalupe reserves the right to cancel the 
event if deemed in the best interest of the Town of Guadalupe.   
 
Town Authorization / Approval  ________________________ Title: __________________  Date: ______________ 
 
 
 

PRIVATE EVENT RENTAL AGREEMENT – VALID DATE:  

DATE: __________________________ TIME: ________________________  

 

Guadalupe Mercado Patio Private Special Event  
Rental Agreement Approval  

 

Page 95



ORDINANCE NO. O2018.01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, CONCERNING 
REGULATIONS FOR POSSESSION AND CONSUMPTION OF 
ALCOHOL AT THE TOWN PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE 
TIANGUIS/MERCADO; AND, IMPOSING PENALTIES. 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council deem it necessary to adopt certain regulations to 
protect, enhance and promote the health, safety and welfare of the Town of Guadalupe and its 
residents, and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council desire to promote the enjoyment of the Tianguis / 
Mercado for public and private events and gatherings,   

WHEREAS, to comply with State Statute 4-244.20 and establish rules for the 
consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages on Town property,   

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS:  

I. Alcohol Use Permit.

A. For the purposes of this section:

1. Beer means any beverage obtained by the alcoholic fermentation, infusion or
decoction of barley malt, hops, or other ingredients not drinkable, or any combination of 
them. 

2. Tianguis means the Town of Guadalupe property located at 9201 S. Avenida
del Yaqui, Guadalupe, AZ 

3. Spirituous liquor means alcohol, brandy, whiskey, rum, tequila, mescal, gin,
wine, porter, ale, beer, any malt liquor or malt beverage, absinthe, a compound or mixture 
of any of them or of any of them with any vegetable or other substance, alcohol bitters, 
bitters containing alcohol, any liquid mixture or preparation, whether patented or 
otherwise, which produces intoxication, fruits preserved in ardent spirits, and beverages 
containing more than one-half of one per cent of alcohol by volume. 

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to consume or have in his possession any
spirituous liquor in the Tianguis except as provided in Subsection C of this section. 

C. The Town Manager is empowered to issue permits authorizing the consumption and
possession of beer in the Tianguis and to adopt rules, procedures and fees for the issuance of 
such permits. 

Page 96



 
 
 

2 
 

D.    A person who has obtained a permit pursuant to Subsection C of this Section shall 
display the permit upon request. The permit holder and all persons covered by the permit shall 
abide by the stipulations of use set forth in the permit. The permit may be revoked for failure to 
comply with the requirements of this Subsection. 

 
E.    This Section shall not apply to premises for which a license has been issued pursuant 

to Title 4, Arizona Revised Statutes. 
 
 

II. Authority to Enforce Violations of this Ordinance; Means of Enforcement.  
 

A. The Town Manager or designee shall enforce this ordinance. 
 

B. Any person authorized pursuant to this section to enforce this ordinance may issue 
a notice of violation specifying actions to be taken and the time in which they are to be taken to 
avoid issuance of a criminal complaint. 

 
C. The Maricopa County Sheriff’s Department, the Town Attorney, or his assistant 

may issue criminal complaints to enforce this ordinance. 
 

III. Penalty. 
 

The penalty for violating any prohibition or requirement imposed by this ordinance is a 
class one misdemeanor. The maximum penalty that may be imposed for violating this ordinance 
is up to one year in jail, and/or a fine of up to $2,500.00 plus any applicable surcharges. 
 
IV. Providing for Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 
 
 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of the Town Code, 
or this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
V. Providing for Severability. 
 
  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance or 
is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF GUADALUPE THIS __ 

DAY OF ____, 2018.   
 

 
 

Page 97



 
 
 

3 
 

 
ATTEST:       TOWN OF GUADALUPE, an  

Arizona Municipal Corporation  
 
 
________________________   __________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga                 Valerie Molina 
Town Manager / Clerk     Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
________________________________ 
David Ledyard 
Town Attorney 
 
 

I, JEFF KULAGA, TOWN CLERK, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT A TRUE AND 
CORRECT COPY OF THE ORDINANCE NO. O2018.01 ADOPTED BY THE TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE ON THE __TH DAY OF _____, 2018, WAS POSTED IN THREE PLACES ON 
THE _____ DAY OF JULY, 2018. 

______________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Clerk 

Page 98


	07 12 18 Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	Informational Memo
	G1.  Boys and Girls Club Presentation
	D1.  06 14 18 Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	G2.  Avenida Del Yaqui Project Presentation
	G3.  Cox Cable Liscense Extention 06 01 2018
	G3.  Cox Cable License Extension  11 13 06

	G4.  RWC Governance Adoption Fact Sheet - Final
	G4.  First Amendment to Amended  Restated RWC IGA Final

	G5. REVISED Guadalupe Mercado Facility Use Public Event
	G6.  REVISED Guadalupe Mercado Facility Use Private Event
	G7.  Alcohol Use Permit Ordinance O2018.01



